BENTLEY CRICKET CLUB



Yearbook **2024/25**

Table of Contents

Ladders	I
Presidents Report	2
Chairman of Selectors Report	3
Newest Blues	6
1st Side Report	7
1st Side Batting and Partnerships	8
1st Side Bowling	9
2nd Side Report	10
2nd Side Batting and Partnerships	13
2nd Side Bowling	14
3rd Side Report	15
3rd Side Batting and Partnerships	17
3rd Side Bowling	18
150 Matches - Joshua Ericson	19
300 Matches - Chris Lockyer	20
200 Matches - Donald McKeig	21
One Day Side Report	22
One Day Side Batting and partnerships	25
One Day Side Bowling	26
200 Matches - Simon Cleary	27
150 Matches - Michael Vlismas	28
Club Roles	29
Grade Awards	30
Season Batting	31
Season Bowling	33
Ralph Dungey Points	35
Consistency Award Points	36
Career Batting (current players only)	37
Career Bowling (current players only)	39
Milestones Achieved	41
Milestones Achievable 2025/26	42
T20 Season Batting, Partnerships and Bowling	43
T20 Career Batting and Bowling	44
Lesley Magill	45
Sponsors	46

Ladders

1st Grade	Team	Р	W	L	Т	D	Points
	Bassendean	12	9	3	0	0	86
	Swanbourne	12	9	2	1	0	86
	Murdoch University Melville	12	9	2	1	0	86
	High Wycombe	12	8	4	0	0	74
	Wembley Districts	12	6	6	0	0	54
	Balcatta	12	5	7	0	0	44
	North Perth	12	4	8	0	0	36
	Subiaco Marist	12	4	8	0	0	34
	Swan Valley	12	3	9	0	0	28
	Bentley	12	2	10	0	0	18
3rd Grade	Team	Р	W	L	Т	D	Points
ora orago	Wembley Districts	12	10	2	0	0	98
	Bassendean	12	9	2	1	0	83
	Murdoch University Melville	12	8	4	0	0	72
	Balcatta	12	8	4	0	0	72
	High Wycombe	12	6	6	0	0	60
	Swanbourne	12	5	6	1	0	51
	Bentley	12	5	7	0	Ö	46
	North Perth	12	4	6	2	0	44
	Subiaco Marist	12	3	9	0	0	26
	Swan Valley	12	0	12	0	0	0
	Swarr valley	12	J	12	Ü	Ü	Ü
6th Grade	Team	Р	W	L	Т	D	Points
	High Wycombe	12	10	2	0	0	88
	Applecross	12	8	4	0	0	74
	Swanbourne	12	8	4	0	0	72
	Bentley	12	7	5	0	0	62
	Subiaco Marist	12	6	6	0	0	58
	Bassendean	12	4	8	0	0	36
	North Perth	12	3	9	0	0	26
	Whitfords	12	2	10	0	0	16
One Day 4	Team	Р	W	L	Т	D	Points
,	High Wycombe	17	15	2	0	0	120
	Western Suburbs	17	14	3	0	0	112
	Fremantle Mosman Park	17	12	5	0	0	96
	Bentley	17	9	8	0	0	72
	Applecross	17	9	8	0	0	72
	Ocean Ridge	17	7	9	0	0	56
	Bedford Morley	17	6	10	0	0	48
	North Beach Carine	17	5	12	0	0	40
	Curtin Victoria Park	17	4	13	0	0	32
	Wembley Districts	17	4	12	0	0	32
	•						

Presidents Report

On behalf of the Bentley Cricket Club, I would like to thank our, patrons, sponsors, life members, friends, family and partners for supporting our great club. Grateful acknowledgements as well to Tony Magill for compiling our yearbook yet again post season 2024/25.

We reflect on the last twelve months I believe the club has grown in off field strength as we continue to build a junior program as well as realizing the long-term project of turf training nets. I'm very pleased to confirm that under the watchful management of Steve Shearing we will shortly be turning the first sod on this long-awaited project. This great ambition has not been realised without the significant financial support of the City of Canning, thank you Mayor Patrick Hall and the recent pledge from Vic Park MLA Hannah Beazley. Federal MP for Swan Zaneta Mascarenhas has also pledged her support to our project and we wish her all the best in the upcoming election campaign. The support of our Patrons and the generous contributions from sponsors Eurocare, Byford Pharmacy and MJH Airconditioning mean we enjoy a healthy balance sheet, the envy of the competition.

Detracting somewhat from this is the club finding it's at the bottom of the 1st grade ladder at the end of the season, our first side did not win a regular season match for the entire 2024 calendar year. Some late wins very nearly salvaged the situation, but we were unable to chase the runs on the final Saturday of the season. Our second eleven had their best season of the last five with just five victories. Our third side were shock grand finalists however they were humiliated in a single day to limply hand over a flag and the 4th XI played a semi final for much the same outcome.

The end of 24/25 completes ten seasons without the club winning a grand final. We should not be satisfied with this. In ten seasons we have entered 49 Saturday sides and played in 25 finals series. 25 finals series and in that our last ten grand final appearances have been losses. That's ten consecutive opportunities to sing the song loud and proud and put a flag on the wall gone begging. 25 finals tell us we don't lack the talent to compete, but ten grand finals second best tells us we don't want it enough. If we think of Bentley as a champion club, and we should, we need to carry that mentality and that commitment to everything we do here.

How many of us start the season with the goal, the commitment in mind to put a flag on the wall? How many of us believe it? How many of us try hard enough? I do not believe we exist just to fill out the grades and give other clubs the chance to win flags, I'm not interested in another season of that. I want every player to think about why you play for Bentley and what you play for. I hope that it's for a flag – I hope you think about what you might do differently next season to make that happen, reflect on what that commitment looks like because I don't see enough of it. Think about what must change because ten seasons and ten grand finals in a row tells us the status quo is not working.

We must set our sights on next season with optimism. It's a chance for a fresh start, let's start season 25/26 having rediscovered our mojo, our swagger, our attitude as a 'champion club'. I want to see the snarl, the stare downs, the steely determination and unforgettable wins from impossible situations. You should be the one who puts the side on your back to win the game, you can be the talisman.

Jay Smith

Chairman of Selectors Report

Looking back on the season that was, from a selections perspective it was certainly one for the books, with two central themes; a season of what-ifs in the turf grades, and perhaps a sense of overachievement in the lower grades. Having dropped from five sides to four halfway through the previous season, hopes were high early for a few less headaches on Thursday and Friday night, whilst the addition of some strong recruits on paper had us optimistic about our chances of being thereabouts in the 1st Grade flag race.

Unfortunately, neither scenario proved to be the case; despite seemingly stable numbers, all four sides had their share of short-notice challenges and putting 44 on the park sometimes took a little more creativity than desirable. A combination of untimely injuries and the understandable juggling act of fitting cricket into real life always seemed to go the other way at the less convenient moments, but the real disappointment was seeing the 1st XI slide from possible contenders to being relegated from the top grade.

Still, it wasn't all doom and gloom despite the sting of losing our 1st Grade spot (and the inevitable exodus of top-end talent that probably brings); there were green shoots across the grades and reasons to celebrate the season that was regardless.

===

1st Grade, having slipped out of the finals mix at the last minute after a rollercoaster 2023/24, stepped out with the self-belief their best was top four material, with a couple of high-level recruits landed to plug some gaps and push them back into finals. With our 2023/24 leading run scorers not returning for 2024/25, the early results saw bankable early wins go begging – Travis Keys (111) and Manuel Hunwick (93) played lone hands in 13-run losses chasing 208 and 178. A bowling attack missing last year's leading wicket taker in Tasman Harris (building fitness in the 2's after a cancer battle between seasons) toiled hard on some fiendishly flat wickets, but the lack of a quality spinner and few reliable part-time options saw some heavy defeats pre-Christmas as a lack of depth forced some short-term fixes that didn't really assist in the short or long term.

After a winless pre-Christmas run, prodigious 14-year-old left-arm leggie Ashton Taylor could no longer be denied on the back of his outstanding 2's performances. The return of import Zain UI-Hassan, now playing for Glamorgan in County Div 2, also raised hopes of upping the standard and putting some respect on the Bentley name. After a first-up flogging at Bassendean (minus former talisman Awais Mehdi – the only match he missed all season after leaving Bentley citing potential work commitment issues), the team finally tasted success at Swan Valley; a 91-run win set up by an UI-Hassan 66* (64) and 4-10 from the reliable Adam Palumbo.

Unfortunately, the final three two-day matches told the story of our season – a 200 run loss in pursuit of 345 in Round 10 widened the gap between relegation and safety, before everything clicked for the first time in Round 11; 50's from Ul-Hassan, pre-season recruits Hugh Sando and David Melling set Balcatta 302, whilst Taylor (5-32) and Palumbo (2-18) combining for the final 7 wickets to roll them for 171 having been 3-98. Round 12 was a loser-leaves-1st Grade encounter with North Perth, but the fates were not on our side; with Zain departing early, captain Mitch Crew missing week one due to the birth of his first child, and a batters paradise being rained up in the early morning on Day 2, North Perth weathered some early carnage and set us a total we just couldn't get close to.

Best performers with the ball were Palumbo (27 wickets @ 19), Melling (18 at 30.06) and Crew (12 @ 26.75), whilst Sando (347 runs @ 34.7), Keys (294 @ 22.62) and Hunwick (257 at 19.77) led the way with the bat.

===

The 2nd XI's story, having maintained a relatively consistent core for the last couple of years, was a relatively familiar one – inconsistent with the bat, promising with the ball but let down in the field. A 7th place finish in a 10-team league speaks more to missed opportunities than a lack of potential, as the best of that side was absolutely competitive in 3rd Grade, particularly with a batting lineup strengthened by the addition of Pakistani newbie Umair Arshad (the season's leading run-scorer with 323 despite a couple of appearances in the top side) and the pre-Christmas presence of coach David Taylor and son Ashton (163 runs each).

If anything, the biggest consistency was inconsistency – Round 1 saw a messy 5 wicket loss where the side lost 9-59 to be bowled out for 119 with Balcatta chasing it down in 22 overs. Round 2 saw the side belting 233 against Subiaco Marist before an all-too-familiar annihilation from the well-oiled Wembley in Round 3. Back to back successful defences of 200+ scores against High Wycombe and Swanbourne preceded a slip-up against a distinctly average North Perth; it's been said that Forrest Gump's mother once compared the Bentley 2nd XI to a box of chocolates.

Unfortunately, reinforcements were in short supply from the more successful 3rd XI as they established themselves firmly in the top four, and the 1st XI were routinely forced to think outside the box to find a 1st XI calibre player far more often than desired; the side also lost Ashton Taylor to 1st Grade just before Christmas (and David with him due to logistical challenges), as well as Jesse Musitano being volunteered down to the 3rd XI to qualify for finals when 2's looked out of the picture. Back to back wins in Round 9 and 10 did put finals back on the agenda, but being knocked over for less than 100 in winnable Round 11 and 12 matches snuffed that out in short order.

On top of the aforementioned runscorers, Ashton Taylor also topped the wickets list with 17 @ 12.47 in only six matches; Vishav Gill took 15 @ 17.2, whilst captain Darren Leng and Khushpal Singh snared 14 apiece (averaging 21.71 and 19.93 respectively).

A real what-if season for the 2's – the gap between the best and worst performances simply too great to grab every opportunity.

===

The 3rd XI had the exact opposite season to 2023/24, going from relegation from 5th Grade on the back of a one-win campaign to making a one-day semi-final and two-day grand final (knocking over the minor premiers to do so before falling to Swanbourne the next week). An injection of youth provided the bedrock of the side, with a rotation of two to four soldiers raising the average age above the legal drinking age.

Unusually, the influx of youth resulted in a young, but stacked batting lineup – an exceptionally unusual mixture in this writer's Bentley experience. 17-year-old Ben Rae anchored the top order, going on to top the 6th Grade batting aggregate after a shaky first couple of innings. Schoolmate David Arcaro provided the early highlights, displaying a technique and attitude made for two-day cricket, whilst twin brother Josh provided middle order aggression and deceptively miserly leg spin. When David succumbed to a hip flexor injury, in stepped 16-year-old Bohen Kane-Slocombe to partner Ben, with Dad Chris making useful contributions with the new ball and at central umpire. Willetton junior Rithvik Thiruppathi came down in the second half in search of higher-quality senior cricket and provided energy in the field, handy off-spin and stout resistance with the bat on more than one occasion. Finally, the long and raw pace prospect Ben Vlismas, son of Bentley stalwart Mike, showed glimpses of the damage he can wreak across the year with a bit more application and fitness – his brief cameos with the bat were nothing if not entertaining!

Crucial to the late season finals push was Jesse Musitano, on loan from the 2nd XI. Having shown flashes throughout his Bentley playing days, Jesse put High Wycombe to the sword in consecutive two-dayers, recording scores of 110 in a losing effort and a top-shelf 125 in the victorious two-day semi final.

Whilst the twin beltings at the hands of Swanbourne in the two finals played at Allen Park definitely were character-building days at best and there was definitely room to improve, for such a young side, most of whom were in their first serious season of senior cricket, to get to where they did despite their limitations was incredibly impressive, and we hope those folks are in for the long haul with the Blues.

Leading performers were Rae (496 runs @ 35.43 and 8 wickets @ 18.63, Musitano (324 runs @ 46.29 and 4 wickets @ 24.25), J Arcaro (236 runs @ 16.86 and 23 wickets at 17.7), Stace (222 @ 18.5 and 21 wickets @ 22.24) and D Arcaro (202 runs @ 25.25 and 6 wickets @14.33).

===

As is typically the case with the 4th XI, a motley crue of aging Bentley stalwarts and various enthusiastic individuals rolled out each week to give it a crack and see how far they could go. In a sense, 2024/25 was largely a repeat of the 2023/24 season from a results basis; a 4th place finish in a competition dominated by two sides with a few cricketers who patently did not belong at the level. As is generally the case with a team with an average age well into the 50's, mobility in the field and between the wickets was a week-to-week nemesis, but the side was mostly able to hold down the opposition with miserly bowling to compensate for this deficiency.

Whilst the season finished with a whimper as the side was trounced twice in the space of a week by OD4 premiers High Wycombe (who carried two recent 1st Grade batsmen for the entire season), heads never dropped and laughs and ales were never far away.

There were some special moments sprinkled through the year – several games went down to the absolute wire, whilst veterans Simon Cleary and Don McKeig crossed the 200-game milestone, whilst Chris Lockyer, having planned to retire at the end of 2022/23, returned to the fold for one last season, bringing up 300 games in Round 16 against Applecross.

Whilst rarely available due to senior selection at Fremantle, Tate Saxon made three crucial cameos through the season, finishing 3rd in the OD4 batting aggregate with 219 runs whilst also snagging 7 wickets – the consistent presences of the improving Mahedi Hasan (274) and resident pollie whisperer Steve Shearing (238) topped the batting aggregate charts, whilst captain and club President Jay Smith (17 wickets), Chris Slocombe (11) and Greg Nairn (10) led the wicket takers.

Newest Blues

Gurseerat Khalsa	1242
David Melling	1243
Hugh Sando	1244
Gagu Singh	1245
Pushkar Singh	1246
Joshua Keys	1247
Muhammad Umair Arshad	1248
David Arcaro	1249
Joshua Arcaro	1250
Ben Rae	1251
Harmanpreet Sandhu	1252
Raheel Ahmed	1253
Bradley Scriven	1254
Adam Carlson	1255
Mohammad Hafeez Tariq	1256
Rithvik Thiruppathi	1257
Ayaan Tomar	1258
William Bolton	1259
Husnain Raza	1260
Arslan Abid	1261
Mitchell Ramsey	1262

1st Side Report

Season 2024/25 turned out to be incredibly challenging and disappointing for the 1st grade side, ultimately being relegated to 2nd grade for the 2025/26 season. During our off season, the club worked incredibly hard to retain and attract highly talented players to push our club towards finals contention in all grades. Our top side welcomed Hugh Sando and David Melling from Fremantle Mosman Park CC, both highly accomplished players at the WASTCA level, with Dave also representing Australia in deaf cricket for a number of years. DT also signed on for another year of coaching, as well as playing in the 2's with his son Ashton.

Despite these additions to our top sides, the on-field results were poor. The top side went winless in the first half of the season, with a lack of batting partnerships and bowling consistency, as well as missed chances in the field to challenge our rivals. Injuries, availability and continuity were also a challenge across the season but simply, we weren't good enough for long enough.

Post Christmas, we welcomed Tasman Harris back into the top side, who had been recovering from illness in the 2's. We also promoted Ashton Taylor into the 1's after a very strong half of the season in the 2's, and at the age of 15 he didn't look out of place. But by far our biggest recruit of the season, was Zain Ul-Hassan. Zain is currently contracted for Glamorgan CC in the English County League and last played at Bentley in the 2019/20 season when we won the 1st grade premiership. Zain bought a lot of knowledge and experience with him, as well as a high skill level which we hoped would help us win some games and avoid the relegation.

With these additions to our top side, the results did start to improve. We were able to knock off Swan valley and Balcatta to close the gap on relegation, with our fate coming down to the last game of the season against North Perth. Unfortunately, Zain had to return home for personal reasons, and we couldn't replace his calibre to get across the line. North Perth were too good, ultimately sealing our fate in being relegated to 2nd grade for the 2025/26 season. As captain I take responsibility for the poor season we had and am bitterly disappointed that we found ourselves in this position. I really felt the list of players we had would be contending for a flag. Although it's not where we want to be, I am excited for the 2025/26 season, a reset and a push to get ourselves back into 1st grade where we belong.

Lastly, some quick thankyous. Thanks to Jay and the committee for backing me in and allowing me to captain the 1st side for three and a half seasons, the support has been immense. Thanks to DT for leading the club again from a coaching perspective, your knowledge and experience is invaluable which I know has improved some guys at the club that were willing to work with you. Lastly, thanks to the players. Although it was a poor season everyone gave it their all, were very supportive and made my weekends enjoyable. I'm looking forward to seeing what we can do in 2025/26.

Go	the	Mig	htv	Βl	ues	l
\sim				$\boldsymbol{\mathcal{L}}$	ucs.	۰

Mitch Crew

1st Side Batting

Player Name	M	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Sando, Hugh	9.5	10	0	133	347	34.70	2	1	44	6	7	0	0	40
Keys, Travis	12	13	0	111	294	22.62	1	1	26	3	11	0	1	82
Hunwick, Manuel	11	13	0	93	257	19.77	1	0	20	5	8	0	0	29
Fanayan, Omid	12	13	1	34	221	18.42	0	0	28	1	9	0	0.5	103
Melling, David	11	12	0	65	196	16.33	1	0	22	2	5	0	1	17
Ul Hassan, Zain	4	4	1	81	192	64.00	2	0	17	5	0	0	0	11
Horan, Tim	5.5	5	0	62	99	19.80	1	0	8	1	4	0	0	8
Singh, Pushkar	7	8	2	36*	84	14.00	0	0	8	0	2	1	0.5	43
Daw, Cameron	7.5	7	0	43	82	11.71	0	0	6	0	1	0	0	4
Palumbo, Adam	11	11	4	22	60	8.57	0	0	2	2	3	0	0.5	41
Crew, Mitchell	9	9	2	23*	47	6.71	0	0	2	1	1	0	0	46
Taylor, Ashton	5	4	0	39	46	11.50	0	0	4	0	2	0	0	0
Keys, Joshua	4	5	0	16	35	7.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	18
Arshad, Muhammad Umair	2	2	0	16	29	14.50	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Khalsa, Gurseerat	1	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0.5	9
Saini, Balwinder	3	3	0	14	18	6.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	2
Harris, Tasman	6	6	3	10*	14	4.67	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	14
Gill, Vishav	2	2	1	7	12	12.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
Dilshad, Umar	2	2	1	6*	7	7.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
Singh, Avneet	4	5	1	4	5	1.25	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
Curwood, Mitchell	1	1	1	4*	4	NA	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Singh, Gagu	1	2	0	1	1	0.50	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1
Taylor, David	0.5	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
Ramsey, Mitchell	0	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	10

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	48	Travis Keys - Joshua Keys*	3	Wembley Districts
2	99	Travis Keys* - Manuel Hunwick	1	Balcatta
3	108	Manuel Hunwick - Hugh Sando*	4	High Wycombe
4	64	Tim Horan* - Cameron Daw	7	Murdoch University Melville
5	92	Zain Ul-Hassan* - Omid Fanayan	9	Swan Valley
6	56	Manuel Hunwick* - Omid Fanayan	2	Subiaco Marist
7	83	Zain Ul-Hassan - David Melling*	11	Balcatta
8	10	Cameron Daw* - Tim Horan	12	North Perth
9	47	Hugh Sando* - Umair Arshad	5	Swanbourne
10	40*	Adam Palumbo* - Mitchell Crew*	11	Balcatta

1st Side Bowling

Player Name	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Palumbo, Adam	763	14	27	513	19.00	4/10	0	0	28.26	4.03
Melling, David	702	13	18	541	30.06	4/66	0	0	39.00	4.62
Crew, Mitchell	412	7	12	321	26.75	3/56	0	0	34.33	4.67
Harris, Tasman	405	14	9	226	25.11	3/32	0	0	45.00	3.35
Taylor, Ashton	240	2	7	143	20.43	5/32	1	0	34.29	3.58
Fanayan, Omid	378	3	5	245	49.00	2/31	0	0	75.60	3.89
Singh, Avneet	218	5	4	151	37.75	4/65	0	0	54.50	4.16
Khalsa, Gurseerat	30	0	2	34	17.00	2/34	0	0	15.00	6.80
Ul Hassan, Zain	126	3	2	67	33.50	2/14	0	0	63.00	3.19
Saini, Balwinder	96	0	2	68	34.00	1/29	0	0	48.00	4.25
Keys, Travis	2	0	1	1	1.00	1/1	0	0	2.00	3.00
Hunwick, Manuel	12	0	1	20	20.00	1/20	0	0	12.00	10.00
Singh, Gagu	42	0	1	37	37.00	1/37	0	0	42.00	5.29
Taylor, David	36	0	0	22	NA	0/22	0	0	NA	3.67
Sando, Hugh	24	0	0	26	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	6.50
Curwood, Mitchell	30	0	0	31	NA	0/31	0	0	NA	6.20
Dilshad, Umar	60	0	0	38	NA	0/17	0	0	NA	3.80
Gill, Vishav	96	1	0	79	NA	0/31	0	0	NA	4.94

2nd Side Report

Season 2024/25 for the 2nd XI was one where the team wasn't quite good enough often enough. There were some great wins, great individual and team performances interspersed with some close and not so close losses. The season was a personal opportunity for me to captain a great group and to play with coach, Dave Taylor and son Ashton Taylor. The season started with a one-day home game against Balcatta. Bentley struggled with the bat to post 119. A few early wickets and chances had Balcatta 4/72 and Bentley in the game. However, a few too many dropped/missed chances saw Balcatta make the required runs. The next game was away to Subiaco-Marist and saw the return to playing for DT and son, both debuting in the 2nd XI. T Harris and Lucky Singh gave the Bentley innings some momentum with Harris making 52, falling in the 11th over with Bently 76. Continued partnerships of around 20 runs kept momentum of the innings and run rate. Ashton Taylor came to bat with the score on 124. A sparkling innings from Ashton of 43, finally departing in the 40th over with the score 229. Great poise and manipulation of the field with a chanceless innings. BCC 7/233 of 40 overs.

BCC bowling started well with a maiden from K Dhillon in the first over. Continued pressure with the first wicket falling at 16. Frusher (opener) was batting well, however with continued good bowling, Gill removed him caught by A Taylor for 36 with the score 48. K Dhillon struck again quickly removing No4 bat for 0 with the score now 3/49. A Taylor first over (14) had immediate results taking a wicket, caught Harris second ball, 4/72. Another strike to Taylor having No.5 bat stumped, 5/81. J VDM rode his luck for a lusty 65, dropped 3 times, finally falling to Taylor to another great catch by Harris with the score 6/148. Taylor now eyeing off a maiden 5 for, took his 4th wicket bowled, score now 7/148. Kumar joined in taking 2 wickets (LBW and bowled) to get the score to 9/153. A Taylor wrapped up the game with his 5th wicket, well caught down leg side by P Singh. All out 156. Significant improvement from round 1 and a great result to kickstart the season.

Round 3 was against Wembley away for the first 2-day game of the season. Cool day one with forecast of hot temperatures in week 2 lured Captain Leng into choosing to bowl after wining the toss. Good start by BCC with the ball having WDCC 1/18 after 7 overs. Some tight bowling but no major breakthroughs. WDCC batted sensibly losing 2nd wicket in the 24th over (2/68). Another good partnership taking WDCC 3/121. WDCC offering a few chances eventually making 256 off the 72 overs. Day 2 had BCC poised to challenge. The forecasted hot temperatures did not eventuate. BCC 1st wicket lost at 17 and then a series of regular wickets falling with no real partnerships had BCC eventually all out 92. Some particularly good bowling by WDCC. BCC was sent back in to bat after tea. A few early wickets had BCC under pressure at 4/22 in the 9th over (of 37). D Taylor and U Arshad dug in taking the score to 75 in the 18th over. U Arshad (76*) and C McNab 0* (off 49 balls) steered BCC to stumps to avoid an outright loss. Disappointing 1st innings, no reckless shots, but no partnerships. Good rearguard action in the 2nd innings with U Arshad and C McNab the standouts.

Round 4 at Home against High Wycombe. BCC lost the toss but sent into bat. Shaky start losing both openers for 3 and 3rd wicket at 23. Excellent partnership between Arshad and A Taylor took the score to 129 when Arshad fell for an incredibly good 75 (2nd in 2 weeks). A Taylor continued to anchor the innings with Tayor, Gill and Dhillon before falling in the 70th over with the score 210. BCC reaching 9/215 off the 72 overs. Day 2 started well with HWCC losing the first wicket at 8. Solid partnership from HWCC took the score to 64 before the 2nd opener fell. 3rd wicket falling at 89. D'Souza took his chances (2+ drop catches/chances) before falling for 89 with the score 129. Great 2nd hour from BCC, taking 4/60 having HWCC 6/140 at tea. HWCC batted solidly after tea, losing the next wicket at 179 to a great catch by Curwood at backward point off Gill. Gill proceeded to take 2 more wickets (bowled and LBW) in the 56th over to have HWCC 9/201. D Taylor given the ball and, in his 3rd, over, removed 11th batter, caught G Singh at 1st slip to see BCC win by 9 runs, with HWCC losing 3/5 in 4 overs. Great effort and performance by all, especially after tea. Notable bowling from Saini and Gill and supported well by A Taylor.

Round 5 saw BCC travel out to Allen Park to play Swanbourne in a 2-day game. BCC lost the toss and sent into bat. McNab and Leng opened the batting with McNab falling early to a good outswinger, 1/0. Leng joined by Pritchard who fell for 4, 2/14. Daw joined Leng. Both batters settled in, Leng with a little (read a lot) luck and built a strong partnership, taking the score to 2/93 at tea. The partnership was finally broken when Leng fell for 62, score 3/135 (a 121-run partnership). Daw and A Taylor put on another 18 when Daw fell for 71 in the 55th over. BCC trying to up the run rate, D Taylor falling for 11 in the 61st over, 5/167. Incoming batters now taking more risks to setup the score, taking the score to 9/215 at the close of play. A defendable target on a slow outfield.

Week 2 with BCC looking to continue good form in the field. Solid start from K Dhillon securing his 1st wicket in the 7th over, 1/24. Swanbourne no 2 and 3 settled in until Curwood removed no 3, 2/61 in the 16th over. Daw replaced Dhillon and a fine spell of 2/14 off 6 removed no 4 and no 6, with Curwood taking no 2 and 3. A Taylor brought into the attack with immediate success removing no.5 batter, 6/100 in 29th over. A Taylor continued, taking 7th wicket before tea, having Swanbourne 7/115 at tea. BCC resumed after tea, maintaining the pressure with P Kumar taking a wicket and

A Taylor taking 2 more wickets, including the last wicket, to wrap up the W for the BCC with Swanbourne all out 129 in the 49th over. Great win for BCC.

Round 6 had Bentley take on North Perth at Charles Veryard in a 1-day game and coming into the game with some positivity on the back of a great win against Swanbourne. Some last-minute selection issues due to injuries in the 1's saw V Gill and M Curwood promoted and debuting in the 1's (well deserved) and the ever-reliable Tony Magill coming into the 2nd XI. BCC lost the toss on a warm day and sent into the field. Reasonable start with some chances and K Dhillon taking the first wicket, caught at 1st slip by Daw, 1/16. Leng then removed number 3 LBW, 2/21. NPCC consolidated losing next wicket 3/79. A Taylor bowling exceptionally in the middle overs, taking 5/29. Some lusty blows and luck saw NPCC take their score to 174, all out in 38 overs. Game On. BCC opened with D and A Taylor, but lost A Taylor 1/17, then G Singh 2/34. Consolidation with D Taylor and Daw taking the score to 65 before Daw fell. A very hot day started to take it's toll and saw D Taylor retire hurt. BCC lost the 4th wicket at 110 and still in the game. Unfortunately, in a too familiar pattern, BCC could not maintain the run rate and failed to build partnerships, finally all out 147 in the 39th over. Highlights A Taylor 5/29, D Taylor 43.

Round 7 had BCC host Murdoch at Wyong in a 1-day game. This is one of the games we would all like to forget, completely outplayed. BCC lost the toss and sent into the field. Bowling started well having MUMCC 2/17 in the 6th over. MUMCC then took the game away with a 216 run partnership between Charles and Kennelly, taking the team score to 238, with both Charles and Kennelly making 100's. BCC lost early wickets in the run chase, with D Taylor anchoring the innings, but eventually falling for 49 in the 18th over with BCC 4/72. Regular wickets then fell with BCC never really in the hunt to chase down the score, eventually all out for 167 in the 39th over.

Round 8 vs Bassendean at home. Bentley won the toss and batted. A great opening start from J Musitano and G Singh saw the score at 45 for 1 in the 9th over, the highlight being a huge six by Musitano. BCC consolidated however, some tight bowling that resulted in 2 quick wickets at 60 and 62. A good partnership between Daw and Arshad took the score to 115 when Daw fell in the 30th over. Arshad and Kalangutkar started to increase run rate with Arshad falling in the 34th over for 42 and the BCC score 132. Some great striking from Kalangutkar (2 big sixes), joined by Gill to take the score to 182, Gill falling on the last ball trying a sneaky single (didn't come to enough Blasters sessions). A good score and Bentley in the game. The bowling innings started well with Gill removing the first 2 wickets in the 4th and 8th over and then Curwood removing the 3rd to have Bassendean 3/40 in the 9th over. The 4th wicket fell in the 14th over to have Bassendean 4/75. Some tight bowling put the pressure back to Bassendean with Dhillon returning to take the 5th wicket at 89 and then 6th by Leng for 102 in the 22nd over. Bassendean consolidated and kept the run rate in hand losing the 7th wicket in the 32nd over at 147, still requiring a further 36 to win. Unfortunately, Bentley could not remove the batters with Bassendean passing the score in the 36th over, 7/187. One that got away, but credit to Bassendean for keeping their head and chasing a competitive score.

Round 9 had the BCC 2nd XI travel to Swan Valley for a 1-day game. A change in team as Ashton Taylor was promoted into the Bentley 1st XI. Great reward for a great season to date with Ashon being the standout bowler in the team and the grade to that point. These would be two huge shoes to fill (literally and figuratively) with both Taylor's missing from the 2nd XI lineup. BCC lost the toss (again) and sent into the field. A great start with Dhillon taking a wicket in the first over, caught by G Singh (first of 3). Gill then took 2nd wicket in the 4th over 2/17. BCC keeping pressure on with Dhillon taking 3rd wicket in 9th over, 3/31. A change in bowling saw Curwood replacing Dhillon and taking a wicket in hist first over, 4/46. A steadying partnership taking SV to 74 until Thirrupathi removed the #5 with his first ball in 3rd grade, 5/74. Curwood then struck again in his next over, 6/76. Thirrupathi then taking wicket #2 with SV now struggling at 7/76. A short-lived rear-guard action from SV taking the score to 7/89 at the end of the 23rd over. Curwood's last over finished the innings, taking 3 wickets for 3 in his last over, wrapping SV up for 92 in 24 overs. Curwood first ever 5 fa (5/25 off 8). BCC started the chase with 7 off the first over, but lost Singh in the 2nd to be 1/7. Musitano and Arshad continued their good form, taking the score to 1/53 at the interval. Musitano fell immediately after the interval, 2/53. Pritchard and Arshad consolidated and accelerated with some fine hitting by Arshad taking

the score to 88 in the 22 over. Arshad then fell for 57 with Saini joining Pritchard to hit the winning runs in the 24th over and seal a great win for BCC. Standout performances were Curwood with 5/25. Singh taking 3 catches, Thirrupathi 2/10 on debut for 2nd XI and Arshad 57, continuing his fine form with the bat.

Round 10 saw Bentley host Subi Marist in a 2-day game. BCC lost the toss and were sent into bat and losing early wickets with some tight bowling and good fielding. BCC was 4/58 in 30th over when Umair fell for a solid 39, continuing his good form with the bat. Leng joined Kalangatkur, who eventually fell with the score 5/74. A slow rearguard action took the score to 108 when Gill fell. Dhillon joined Leng for a 37-run partnership with Leng falling in the 61st over, 7/145. Unfortunately, the last 3 wickets fell for 10 runs seeing BCC all out 157. BCC started the second day well, with very tight bowling from Dhillon and Gill and taking the first wicket in the 8th over with the score 9. Continued tight bowling from Dhillon and Gill followed by Curwood and Leng resulted in the 2nd wicket falling in the 22nd over for 27. Leng then removed the numbers 4,5, 6 and 7 batters to have SMCC 6/49 in 32nd over. Some great pressure from the bowlers and supported by some great fielding had SMCC 8 down at tea. Stoic defence from SMCC kept BCC working hard to close out the game with Gill removing the last 2 wickets by the 68th over, SMCC all out 122. BCC win by 35 runs. A great win and finals type pressure with the ball and in the field. More of this and who knows....

Round 11 had BCC travel to Balcatta in a 2-day game. BCC lost the toss (see a pattern yet...) and sent into the field. A grassy wicket that looked like it might do a bit raised hopes that this might have been a good toss to lose. A great start with BCC having Balcatta 3/15 after 11 overs with Khush taking all 3 wickets. A short consolidation with 4th and 5th wicket falling in the same over (25) to Arslan, taking the score to 5/55. A few 10-20 run partnerships saw BCC dismissing Balcatta for 120 after 62 overs with Arslan taking 4/18 and Khush 3/18. That will do for day 1 thanks. Day 2 looked good, small chase and good weather. However, BCC was in trouble early losing 2/7. The testing wicket from the week before was still proving difficult and BCC continued to lose wickets with several batters getting starts but unable to go on with it. BCC finally dismissed for 99 in the 63rd over. A disappointing result ensuring BCC could not make finals.

Round 12 had BCC host North Perth CC. BCC won the toss and elected to bat not knowing wicket was slightly underprepared due to a reticulation issue earlier in the week. BCC lost early wickets and never recovered resulting in a 6/20 score when Leng departed in the 22nd over. A small recovery with Magill falling with score on 38 and final wicket on 71. NPCC started slowly and steadily and lost first wicket at 35 and were 1/50 at stumps on day 1. Day 2 started positively for BCC taking 2 early wickets to have NPCC 3/59. However, NPCC passed the BCC score 3 down, losing their 4th wicket for 85 and declaring the game at drinks 4/96. Season over.

As mentioned earlier in the intro, the 2024/25 season for the 2nd XI was a "not quite" type of year. Never able to fully grasp the opportunities and close out games. No real bad/terrible games but just not quite good enough for long enough. We had some great individual performances with Ashton Taylor taking 17 wickets at 12.47 to go with 163 runs at 23.29. The Taylors scored the same number of runs, 163, and the exact same average of 23.29. Umair Arshad was our standout batter for the season with an aggregate of 323 runs at 32.3. The season saw Mitch Curwood take his first ever 5 fa at Swan Valley, a 5 fa for A Taylor and D Leng, 50's to Harris, Arshad, A Taylor, C Daw, and D Leng. It was a privilege to captain the team and I thoroughly enjoyed the banter, comradery, and cricket during the season. Thanks to all the players and their families for the support during the year. Thanks to DT for his assistance as VC for most of the season and his guidance and friendship. Bring on 2025/26. Carn the mighty Bentley blues.

Darren Leng

2nd Side Batting

Player Name	М	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Arshad, Muhammad Umair	10	11	1	76*	323	32.30	3	0	44	1	5	0	0	11
Taylor, Ashton	6	7	0	69	163	23.29	1	0	9	0	2	0	0	36
Taylor, David	6	7	0	49	163	23.29	0	0	20	3	0	0	0	10
Leng, Darren	12	9	0	62	141	15.67	1	0	11	0	4	0	0	17
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	8	7	1	44*	115	19.17	0	0	10	2	1	0	0	28
Gill, Vishav	9	9	1	29	113	14.13	0	0	11	1	5	0	0	53
Daw, Cameron	3	3	0	71	104	34.67	1	0	9	1	3	0	0	18
Musitano, Jesse	7	7	0	26	104	14.86	0	0	9	2	1	0	0	41
Dhillon, Khush	11	9	2	35	98	14.00	0	0	11	2	4	0	0	40
Singh, Gurvinder	12	13	0	28	86	6.62	0	0	6	0	11	0	0	37
Pritchard, Chris	8	8	1	31	85	12.14	0	0	11	0	5	0	0	58
Harris, Tasman	3.5	5	0	52	74	14.80	1	0	7	2	2	0	0	23
Magill, Tony	3	3	0	30	42	14.00	0	0	3	2	1	0	0	16
Singh, Pushkar	3	3	0	25	29	9.67	0	0	3	0	2	1	0	22
Curwood, Mitchell	9	7	2	10	28	5.60	0	0	3	0	2	0	0	23
Tomar, Ayaan	1.5	2	0	20	20	10.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	10
Bhan, Ujjwal	2	2	1	18*	18	18.00	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	2
Abid, Arslan	2	2	1	11*	11	11.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	4
Saini, Balwinder	1.5	1	1	6*	6	NA	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	18
Kumar, Pardeep	6	5	4	4*	6	6.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	10
Carlson, Adam	1.5	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
McNab, Cameron	3	4	2	2	3	1.50	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	16
Singh, Avneet	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Raza, Husnain	1	1	1	1*	1	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2
Ericson, Joshua	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	45	Jesse Musitano - Gurvinder Singh*	8	Bassendean
2	46	Jesse Musitano - Umair Arshad*	9	Swan Valley
3	121	Darren Leng - Cameron Daw*	5	Swanbourne
4	106	Umair Arshad* - Ashton Taylor	4	High Wycombe
5	53	Umair Arshad* - David Taylor	3	Wembley Districts
6	50	Mahendra Kalangutkar* - Vishav Gill	8	Bassendean
7	56	Ashton Taylor - Vishav Gill*	2	Subiaco Marist
8	27	Tony Magill - Darren Leng*	7	Murdoch University Melville
9	16	Khushpal Singh* - Mitchell Curwood	3	Wembley Districts
10	18	Arslan Abid* - Mitchell Curwood	12	North Perth

2nd Side Bowling

Player Name	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Taylor, Ashton	363	9	17	212	12.47	5/30	2	0	21.35	3.50
Gill, Vishav	499	18	15	258	17.20	3/12	0	0	33.27	3.10
Dhillon, Khush	516	17	14	279	19.93	3/22	0	0	36.86	3.24
Leng, Darren	510	16	14	304	21.71	5/22	1	0	36.43	3.58
Curwood, Mitchell	390	8	11	247	22.45	5/25	1	0	35.45	3.80
Abid, Arslan	168	12	6	38	6.33	4/18	0	0	28.00	1.36
Kumar, Pardeep	180	5	6	135	22.50	2/27	0	0	30.00	4.50
Taylor, David	118	1	4	81	20.25	2/31	0	0	29.50	4.12
Harris, Tasman	78	1	3	48	16.00	2/29	0	0	26.00	3.69
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	24	1	2	10	5.00	2/10	0	0	12.00	2.50
kalangutkar, Mahendra	120	4	2	26	13.00	2/24	0	0	60.00	1.30
Daw, Cameron	102	0	2	77	38.50	2/14	0	0	51.00	4.53
Saini, Balwinder	48	3	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	48.00	2.63
Ericson, Joshua	24	0	1	32	32.00	1/32	0	0	24.00	8.00
Singh, Gurvinder	36	3	0	6	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	1.00
Singh, Pushkar	12	0	0	7	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	3.50
Magill, Tony	36	0	0	39	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	6.50
Carlson, Adam	42	0	0	44	NA	0/9	0	0	NA	6.29

3rd Side Report

Following a success-challenged 2023/24, I must admit my goals were modest for the 3rd XI upon our demotion from 5th to 6th Grade – first, to win at least two games, and second, for the champion bat to score more than 200 runs (having essentially won by default last year as the only one to cross the 150-run threshold). Looking back on the season that was 2024/25, in the words of a certain Kazakhstani journalist, great success!

Not only did we have two wins by the end of Round 3, five players topped the 200-run mark as the side thumbed its nose at the typical Bentley convention of fielding almost exclusively seam-bowling Number 8 bats and a keeper. For the first time I can remember, a Bentley side loaded up with promising young batters and strangled our opponents in the field with a lack of airspeed rarely seen in the two-day arena.

Whilst selection turbulence was never far away and a rotating 3-4 positions on a round-by-round basis probably contributed to the thinning recently pointed out by my barber, a remarkably young and resilient core group rode some early ups and downs as a new generation was introduced to the rollercoaster of WASTCA two-dayers, with plenty of memorable days for one reason or another!

A net-positive season pushed us to finals appearances in both formats, although both premiership pursuits were ended in comprehensive fashion by our season-defining antagonists, Swanbourne.

After four remarkable and spirited contests, we split the honours 2-all; unfortunately, we fell short when the whips were cracking, but the two we did win were personal highlights, even after the stroke I almost had umpiring the last over of the one-dayer as Swanbourne snatched defeat from the jaws of victory.

Ultimately, experience was the difference between the sides – having capitalised on some good fortune in the regular season fixtures, the combination of a volatile Allen Park wicket and an aggressive opponent, bolstered with players of a standard suited to higher honours, brought us undone. Still, we weren't there by accident – you don't get the chance to be second-best on the day if you don't get the job done all year. It was also nice to not have to drive there from Wellard for Grand Final Sunday for the fifth time that season.

===

Whilst we were rarely truly dominant in any specific discipline, we did what good Bentley teams do and put up a hell of a fight most weeks. The early highlight was chasing down 267 in our first stoush with Swanbourne off the back of (stop me if you've heard this before) a swashbuckling Arcaro hundred. On this occasion, it was 17-year-old Josh who strode out to the middle at 3-84 and showed vintage Arcaro bluster on his way to 111* from 130 balls – Arcaro Snr testing the limits of his continence in the carpark so as not to leave his seat and jinx his son.

You'd have to ask Josh what was more special – winning the match off his own bat and tonning up in front of his Dad, or the fact that twin brother David – the early standout with the bat – slapped a ball that nearly missed the wicket to point in the second over of the chase and had to watch it all from the sheds.

From a bowling perspective, our best team effort was our pre-Christmas one-dayer against Subiaco-Marist. Whilst our batting was loaded compared to previous seasons, we were undoubtedly more geared towards long-form cricket; a 104-run opening stand between 6th Grade champion bat Ben Rae and David Arcaro was chanceless but left less than ten overs for the rest of us to scramble to 165 against last season's premiers. A fast start from Subi's openers threatened to blow us away as they feasted on the only pace we had to offer, but 32 overs of grinding and patience from our battery of spinners saw us hold on and win by a solitary run.

===

The unequivocal all-round performance of the season was our two-day semi-final. With fixturing not in our favour late in the season and minimal quotient between 2nd and 5th, we slipped from second and hosting at Wyong to fourth and travelling to take on 6th Grade's undisputed pacesetters - High Wycombe. I'd be lying if I said I wasn't daunted by the prospect – only a few weeks prior, we'd conceded 300 to them and been fortunate to make 230 in reply off the back of a maiden Jesse Musitano hundred which, on another day, may have been cut short quite early on.

However, from the moment I lost the toss and was sent in on a hard, flat wicket with little other than the past 24 hours' weather to make a captain contemplate bowling first, things could barely have played out better. After a sedate start owed to tight bowling, a couple of unfortunate dismissals saw myself walking out to join Musitano at 4-63 with half the overs still to bat. A gritty post-lunch session led to a 95-stand together as the change bowlers opened the door, before yours truly saw the openers come back far later than expected and got bowled trying to hit out before getting out.

Thankfully, Jesse isn't a coward and he carried us through to the last over before falling for 125 from 146 – it's not hyperbole to say it was probably the best innings in a game I've played in, and High Wycombe must be devastated that they'll not see him next season. Having said that, my straight sixes were sexier and longer than his, and if you don't believe me, check the highlights!

From 4/65 at the halfway mark, 244 was a spectacular result, but we knew if there was one team capable of chasing it, it was High Wycombe. One of their opening bats had put on a spectacular display of indoor-esque hitting on route to 111 in the previous two-dayer, so we knew we couldn't afford to drop him eight times this time around. This time, persistence with the ball and an elevated standard in the field proved decisive – once a stubborn 3rd wicket stand of 58 was broken by a trademark Magill nibbling inswinger, the season's early centurions put on a leg-spinning clinic to suffocate the home side and send us into the big dance – 5-30 from 14 overs for Josh Arcaro and 2-17 from 8.4 (including the final wicket) for Musitano.

===

Whilst we stumbled at the final hurdle and my long-standing oath to drink one premiership beer lives to fight another season, I can't say I'm not proud of what we were able to get out of ourselves in 2024/25. It was a boon to finally have a group of kids coming into the club after years of limited success on that front, especially with the limitation of no junior affiliate to speak of. I hope we've been able to foster an environment that brings these guys back next season, and if they've got mates looking for a club, even better.

Whilst the top-end of the list gets the accolades, those who came in and out of the side, even for a week or two, have my gratitude, especially with my Chairman of Selectors hat on – I hope it felt like I did my best to include everyone, as it takes a team to take the field. Special thanks for Mike Vlismas who answered far more last minute calls than anyone should have to, invariably taking the bullet of coming from junior cricket duties to be the 11th man without complaint, happy just to throw the whites on in times of crisis.

Thanks again to the executive for the opportunity to captain again – I hope I lived up to expectations and made the game day experience enjoyable!

Looking forward to what 2025/26 brings!

3rd Side Batting

Player Name	М	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Rae, Ben	14	16	2	97*	496	35.43	3	0	44	1	8	0	1	86
Musitano, Jesse	5.5	8	1	125	324	46.29	0	2	35	6	5	0	0.5	41
Arcaro, Joshua	14	15	1	111*	236	16.86	0	1	28	2	5	0	1	58
Stace, Andrew	14.5	13	1	62*	222	18.50	1	0	21	10	5	0	0	26
Arcaro, David	7.5	8	0	54	202	25.25	2	0	17	1	1	0	0	36
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	8	9	0	44	145	16.11	0	0	8	0	2	0	0	21
Magill, Tony	9	8	2	36	114	19.00	0	0	11	2	6	0	0	25
Daquino, Edward	6	6	2	44*	94	23.50	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	3
McNab, Cameron	12	10	2	14	68	8.50	0	0	3	0	2	1	3.5	53
Bhan, Ujjwal	7	7	0	18	59	8.43	0	0	5	0	1	0	0	2
Vlismas, Michael	4.5	4	2	33*	53	26.50	0	0	7	0	2	0	0	22
Ahmed, Syed Raheel	6	3	1	27*	50	25.00	0	0	4	0	6	0	0	18
Beaucasin, Michael	8	8	0	18	44	5.50	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	11
Francis, Tristan	3	3	0	27	43	14.33	0	0	4	2	1	0	0	3
Vlismas, Ben	12	10	4	13*	33	5.50	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	29
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	5.5	4	1	13	32	10.67	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	9
Tomar, Ayaan	3	3	0	16	24	8.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	3
Ericson, Joshua	2	2	0	11	20	10.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2
Chauhan, Gauravsingh	4	2	0	20	20	10.00	0	0	2	1	2	0	1	45
Smith, Jay	2	1	1	15*	15	NA	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	1
Slocombe, Chris	7	6	2	9	14	3.50	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	5
Rana, Harsh	1	1	1	13*	13	NA	0	0	1	1	1	0	0	0
Arcaro, Daniel	2	2	0	13	13	6.50	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Hasan, Mahedi	1	1	1	7*	7	NA	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Kumar, Pardeep	0.5	1	0	6	6	6.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bolton, William	1	1	1	5*	5	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Pritchard, Chris	2	1	1	3*	3	NA	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	17
Raza, Husnain	1	2	0	1	1	0.50	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
Callis, Elijah	2	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	16
Lockyer, Chris	1	1	1	0*	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	104	Ben Rae - David Arcaro*	7	Subiaco Marist
2	58	David Arcaro* - Edward Daquino	1	High Wycombe
3	76	Ben Rae - Bohen Kane-Slocombe*	5	Swanbourne
4	115*	Ben Rae* - Andrew Stace*	6	Whitfords
5	95	Jesse Musitano* - Andrew Stace	SF	High Wycombe
6	67*	Joshua Arcaro* - Raheel Ahmed*	5	Swanbourne
7	56	Jesse Musitano* - Cameron McNab	10	High Wycombe
8	36	Ben Rae* - Rithvik Thiruppathi	8	North Perth
9	22	Jesse Musitano - Ben Vlismas*	SF	High Wycombe
10	30*	Rithvik Thiruppathi* - Jay Smith*	SF - OD	Swanbourne

3rd Side Bowling

Player Name	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Arcaro, Joshua	746	15	23	407	17.70	5/30	1	0	32.43	3.27
Stace, Andrew	936	22	21	467	22.24	4/21	0	0	44.57	2.99
Magill, Tony	378	9	9	202	22.44	2/20	0	0	42.00	3.21
Rae, Ben	237	1	8	149	18.63	2/11	0	0	29.63	3.77
Vlismas, Ben	338	7	8	231	28.88	4/14	0	0	42.25	4.10
Slocombe, Chris	282	10	7	151	21.57	2/9	0	0	40.29	3.21
Arcaro, David	120	2	6	86	14.33	2/18	0	0	20.00	4.30
Rana, Harsh	156	2	4	68	17.00	3/22	0	0	39.00	2.62
Musitano, Jesse	148	1	4	97	24.25	2/17	0	0	37.00	3.93
McNab, Cameron	114	0	3	117	39.00	2/60	0	0	38.00	6.16
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	186	4	2	132	66.00	1/31	0	0	93.00	4.26
Chauhan, Gauravsingh	6	0	1	1	1.00	1/1	0	0	6.00	1.00
Daquino, Edward	18	0	1	10	10.00	1/10	0	0	18.00	3.33
Beaucasin, Michael	54	3	1	17	17.00	1/4	0	0	54.00	1.89
Smith, Jay	96	5	1	40	40.00	1/16	0	0	96.00	2.50
Ericson, Joshua	96	3	1	78	78.00	1/43	0	0	96.00	4.88
Raza, Husnain	6	0	0	9	NA	0/9	0	0	NA	9.00
Arcaro, Daniel	6	0	0	10	NA	0/10	0	0	NA	10.00
Hasan, Mahedi	6	0	0	11	NA	0/11	0	0	NA	11.00
Bolton, William	12	0	0	13	NA	0/13	0	0	NA	6.50
Ahmed, Syed Raheel	18	0	0	14	NA	0/6	0	0	NA	4.67
Callis, Elijah	54	2	0	21	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	2.33
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	24	0	0	21	NA	0/21	0	0	NA	5.25
Bhan, Ujjwal	48	1	0	27	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	3.38
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	66	1	0	38	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	3.45

150 Matches - Joshua Ericson

Joshua Ericson (player number 996)

Side	All	2	3	4	6/OD
Debut Season	2012/13	2014/15	2012/13	2012/13	2012/13
Matches	150.5	64	32	41.5	13
Runs	1715	363	454	822	76
High Score	103	45	103	78	28
Innings	127	47	30	38	12
Not Outs	29	13	6	7	3
Bat Average	17.50	10.68	18.92	26.52	8.44
4's	135	23	35	73	4
6's	3	0	1	2	0
Boundary %	32.54	25.34	32.16	36.98	21.05
Ducks	16	8	1	5	2
50's	4	0	1	3	0
100's	1	0	1	0	0
50 Partnerships	11	2	2	7	0
100 Partnerships	2	0	1	1	0
Catches	65	20	12	21	12
Stumpings	0	0	0	0	0
Run Outs	7.5	3	0.5	4	0
Balls Bowled	7767	3357	1860	1987	563
Maidens	220	106	57	49	8
Wickets	218	94	53	52	19
Runs	4428	1876	997	1240	315
Bowling Average	20.31	19.96	18.81	23.85	16.58
Best Bowling	7/34	5/57	7/34	4/48	3/20
5WI	1	1	1	0	0
7WI	1	0	1	0	0
10WM	0	0	0	0	0
S/R	35.63	35.71	35.09	38.21	29.63
E/R	3.42	3.35	3.22	3.74	3.36

Only player to score a century and take 7 wickets in an innings in the same match Has a record partnership in the 4th side - 2nd wicket with Kieran Smith, 118 v Ocean Ridge in 2015/16

300 Matches - Chris Lockyer

Christopher Lockyer (player number 344)

Side	All	1	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	1984/85	1984/85	1984/85	1985/86	2005/06	2006/07	2006/07
Matches	300.5	10	39	67.5	119	5	60
Runs	3344	122	456	725	1313	90	638
High Score	73	28	49	55*	69	63	73
Innings	270	14	46	55	95	4	56
Not Outs	60	2	2	19	19	0	18
Bat Average	15.92	10.17	10.36	20.14	17.28	22.50	16.79
4's	273	7	24	54	120	12	56
6's	29	0	1	5	18	1	4
Boundary %	37.86	22.95	22.37	33.93	44.78	60.00	38.87
Ducks	30	1	7	4	9	1	8
50's	8	0	0	2	3	1	2
100's	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
50 Partnerships	20	0	0	4	9	1	6
100 Partnerships	3	0	0	0	2	0	1
Catches	110	14	21	17	36	4	18
Stumpings	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Run Outs	12	0.5	3.5	1	4	0	3
Balls Bowled	15138	264	1265	3970	7798	306	1535
Maidens	623	12	57	163	353	13	25
Wickets	441	5	33	123	214	8	58
Runs	7008	155	516	1672	3328	139	1198
Bowling Average	15.89	31.00	15.64	13.59	15.55	17.38	20.66
Best Bowling	7/44	2/42	5/42	7/44	6/29	3/39	5/10
5WI	9	0	1	3	5	0	1
7WI	1	0	0	1	0	0	0
10WM	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
S/R	34.33	52.80	38.33	32.28	36.44	38.25	26.47
E/R	2.78	3.52	2.45	2.53	2.56	2.73	4.68

Holds 2 partnership records in the 4th side,

^{- 132} for the 3rd wicket with David Berry and 79* for the 10th wicket with Steven Daye Holds the 9th wicket partnership in the OD side of 54 with Simon Cleary Is 1 of 9 players at BCC to have the double of 3000 runs and 300 wickets

200 Matches - Donald McKeig

Donald McKeig (player number 812)

Side	All	1	2	3	4	6/OD
Debut Season	2007/08	2013/14	2008/09	2007/08	2007/08	2017/18
Matches	200	1	49	47	78	25
Runs	3236	3	622	789	1451	371
High Score	91*	3	65	91*	82	61
Innings	195	1	52	47	73	22
Not Outs	17	0	2	1	9	5
Bat Average	18.18	3.00	12.44	17.15	22.67	21.82
4's	333	0	62	78	152	41
6's	26	0	3	2	15	6
Boundary %	45.98	0.00	42.77	41.06	48.10	53.91
Ducks	19	0	9	2	7	1
50's	11	0	2	2	6	1
100's	0	0	0	0	0	0
50 Partnerships	21	0	5	5	9	2
100 Partnerships	1	0	0	1	0	0
Catches	105	2	22	23	40	18
Stumpings	19	0	6	3	7	3
Run Outs	11	0	2	4.5	2	2.5
Balls Bowled	3170		110	649	2283	128
Maidens	86		2	21	63	0
Wickets	89		2	17	65	5
Runs	1903		54	333	1429	87
Bowling Average	21.38		27.00	19.59	21.98	17.40
Best Bowling	6/51		2/4	3/16	6/51	2/8
5WI	0		0	0	4	0
7WI	0		0	0	0	0
10WM	0		0	0	0	0
S/R	35.62		55.00	38.18	35.12	25.60
E/R	3.60		2.95	3.08	3.76	4.08

One Day Side Report

It seemed to be a case of 'rinse and repeat' for the BCC OD team, another semi final loss at the hands of a far superior opposition. Unfortunately, we saw our biggest defeat for the season in the match which matters most.

The standout performer for the OD team this season was undoubtedly Tate Saxon, borrowed from Freo Districts when somehow overlooked for their seniors selections, he was the match-winner for us every time he walked on the park. We got our first taste in round one, Tate anchored the innings v Applecross with 78* as we put on our highest total of the season 9/233. Keg in vintage form, 44 at the top and a very helpful 46 extras. The chase was closer than we'd thought, and some nerves were there with Applecross at 5/182 with overs still in hand - some competent catching meant we had them all out 203, Tate picking up a 2fa and the skipper all over the place with a 4fa, catches and a run out.

Round two we were off to Bedford Morley and this match was one which saw the first of the early season's successful middle order combination in the evergreen Lloyd Dungey and second-year big hitting all-rounder Mahedi Hasan. Against a mostly schoolboy attack we were in some mire at 5/89 but Lloyd (40) and Mahedi's (41*) 71 run stand got us to another competitive total of 205. Bedford decided to bat the innings out rather than chase the runs and they finished 5/137.

Round Three and it was against an opposition we'd made somewhat our 'bunny' in recent seasons, Western Suburbs. They seemed to have broken our hold over them - setting a victory target of 176 and we'd got ourselves into some strife (again) at 7/81 after 24 overs - enter Tony Magill joining at the crease a struggling Danny Arcaro who had to be talked out of retiring hurt having torn something and lost most of the function in one arm. It must have felt like Groundhog Day for Suburbs, the partnership measured their tempo and innings perfectly, Tony playing the big shots and Danny directing singles at will. Tony departed for 52 (40) with 5 overs to go and 17 required, it was a nervous wait as Danny and Jithu knocked it off in singles and we'd done them yet again, 2 wickets and 5 balls in hand.

Cockahoot, three from three we hosted North Beach Carine in round 4 and they set a par target of 172. Mahedi another 53 (57) was dismissed at 4/104 but we felt confident with our two 'hitters' Cleary and J Nairn still to come the target could be run down, they didn't stay the course and it was the unlikely heroes in Jithu and Ben Vlismas swinging from the hip who put on 38 in 6 overs to win us the match.

Undefeated, we met with the other form team of the season High Wycombe, Keg retired crook but their experienced attack tore through our middle order and gave little away, Dungey and Shearing the only two bats who hung around as we completed 40 overs for 118 runs. It was not so one-sided however when Greg Nairn took care of both openers and Carlson from the other end the no's three and four, at 4/31 both sides were still in it. All shots were put away as wicket conservation became the priority but the 57 run partnership was broken by Ben Vlismas with two scorching yorkers in a row putting us back in the game at 6/88 with 8 overs to go but we had taken one wicket too few and they got it done with two overs to go.

We hosted Freo Mosman in round six, another young team more preoccupied with taking the piss out of each other than playing the match it would seem. Shearing at the top of the order was stoic to anchor our innings 56 (104), only dismissed trying to up the rate in the last few overs. Unfortunately, he got minimal support from elsewhere and extras 46 again kept us in the game as we finished up making a subpar 166. Their top order proved to be the difference as they sat at 1/100. We fought back well with 7/57 (Smith 4/25) but their second last pair put on the winning runs with an over to spare.

Round 7 was a resounding victory over the schoolboys from Hale playing as Wembley. Dungey 42* (82) our top scorer in a total of 201 with healthy contributions across the card as the opposition employed ten bowlers opting for participation over merit. Our opening bowler combination of G Nairn and Carlson did the damage with 5 between them, the Wembley innings never got off the ground. Young Vik picked up 3fa and Fizz was very excited to take his first wicket. We had an early finish rolling them for 72 in 28 overs.

Our last game before the break was over the road at Curtin Vic Park, an early wobble was solved by the swashbuckling innings of Mahedi. Not fussed by the slow outfield he smashed them to all parts making 66 at a run a ball to propel us from 4/58 to 6/137 in partnership with Kirk Spencer 29 (41). Wingnut's trademark late cuts in the last over got us to 180. They started well in the chase, but it was Chris Slocombe who took the wicket which broke the game open and in combination with Mahedi reduced them to 6/80. Up stepped Bo Kane-Slocombe returning 3/21 from his full allotment which got them to 9/119, but the no.11 was freely hitting the beleaguered bowling and nerves were high. J Narin mercifully got the breakthrough at the other end to finish the game leaving CVP 22 runs short.

In the first eight rounds we'd chalked up 6 wins, but this good form didn't continue after the break, an insipid effort in January against Applecross to only make 110 meant they could get the victory from 6/51 and 8/99 without time pressure.

Round eleven was heartbreak out at RA Cook, our bowlers could only extract two wickets as they made 185 and we were right in the chase with thirties from Bo and Lloyd, but a brain fade runout meant we fell to 7/134 before rearguard action from Spencer, then a 35 run stand between Carlson and C Slocombe meant we entered the last over with six runs to win (though it should have been five—the first run from the aforementioned R/O had not been counted). Wd, 1 and 1 meant three to win with four to bowl. Carlson was caught trying to hit the winner and unfortunately this brought the senior Nairn to the crease, run out trying to get off strike we'd lost by the smallest of margins.

Round twelve we travelled out to Freo to be greeted by the sight of an inflatable pool next to the scorers table and it proved to be that kind of day. Keg wound back the clock with his 61 at the top of the order but his dismissal saw us fall from 1/109 to 170 all out with 11 balls left, a disappointing outcome which included Kieran lacerating his finger during a post-dismissal perambulation and off to hospital. Tony Magill was on hand as spectator turned sub fielder, we took a couple of late wickets including one when the scores were tied to follow up our 1 run loss with a 1 wicket loss

With finals now in danger of slipping from our grasp we went out to McLean to take on Wembley for the second time. Blessed again by the presence of Tate, he was the beneficiary of some inattentive umpiring to be spared from a stumping and went on to hit 80 (115) in our total of 155 when the next best contributors were Keg 23 and extras 20. Will Bolton and Arlsan Abid both on OD side debut ripped through the young batting line up with 3 each and we looked comfortable when they were 9/110. But the last partnership stood up and took a particular liking to an over from Fizz - all a sudden they needed 20 from the last 12 deliveries. Despite some early runs Bo held his nerve and his line, knocking out the poles on the last ball of the 39th to give us a ten run and vital victory.

Round 14 was another Tater game and CVP never stood much chance, we cleaned them up for 107 (Tate 4fa), but it was Simon Cleary who got their premier player out LBW for 45 which started a collapse of 7/36. Saxon went out at three and put on a show, hitting 61* (55) to get us the runs just after drinks.

Round 15 Suburbs broke their hoodoo as we didn't make good with the bat, dismissed for 119 with wides outscoring everyone. None of our bowlers had an impact as the only wicket they lost in pursuit was a run out. The highlights reel limited to afternoon tea, an extra special spread put on to celebrate Wingnut's 300th and Cleary's 200th appearances for Bentley.

Round 16 we went out to Applecross with the finals question still up in the air, we were 8pts and NRR ahead of them so a win would have been nice. The 200th match for Keg, he and Shearing sharing a 50 run opening stand. We should have been able to go further than we did from the platform of 1/75 but it wasn't to be as we could only manage 146. Their patient opening partnership meant they'd eased to 34 from the first 12 but some wayward bowling followed, and we couldn't keep the pressure up. They knocked off the target with 8 wickets in hand and three overs to spare. Not enough to overturn our ladder position but we were not a team playing finals-worthy cricket.

The final round we knew if we didn't cop a pasting we'd likely be heading out to Scott reserve two weeks in a row. Batting first we evidently were not up to the pace at 5/34 and 7/57, the aforementioned thrashing we had feared was a looming possibility. In stepped Mitch Ramsey who hit a finals-saving 39 (38) we got up to 117 all out. They chased it down no sweat in 27 overs.

Back we were a week later for the semi and this time we got to bowl first. This did not prove a point of difference as our pacers bowling disappointing lengths to get dispatched all over the place. A mentally unwell umpire didn't phase us as much as the batters, but we managed to avoid that dumpster fire. Simon came into the attack and successfully slowed the scoring but unfortunately the damage had been done, and we conceded 207. We never had the ability to get the run rate going in the chase and were dismissed for 100 after 30 overs, enough time to see the 6th grade fare much better on the Scott Reserve turf in their semi.

We'd won six games before the break and two post, six of our batsmen were in the 200+ range, a marked improvement on the season prior but we'd made it no further than in the 2023/24 campaign. The lower OD grades are always going to be beholden to clubs picking players low to win flags, we've been able to do that ourselves in the past. It's important to remember the camaraderie and fun we had rather than dwell on the disappointing conclusion. We had a couple of very special wins this season and some moments that we'll remember fondly for a long time.

Jay Smith #801

One Day Side Batting

Player Name	M	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Hasan, Mahedi	16	15	1	66	274	19.57	2	0	36	2	8	0	2	81
Shearing, Steven	12	12	1	56	238	21.64	1	0	21	0	1	0	0	27
Saxon, Tate	3	3	2	80	219	219.00	3	0	22	3	1	0	0	31
Spencer, Kirk	16	15	1	29	207	14.79	0	0	26	0	4	0	0.5	61
Mckeig, Donald	10	10	1	61	203	22.56	1	0	24	3	6	2	0.5	90
Dungey, Lloyd	14	14	1	42*	201	15.46	0	0	18	0	1	0	0	19
Magill, Tony	6	5	1	52	93	23.25	1	0	11	2	2	0	1	33
Cleary, Simon	9	8	1	19*	85	12.14	0	0	8	1	5	0	0.5	28
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	6	6	0	33	63	10.50	0	0	4	0	0	0	0.5	19
Arcaro, Daniel	1	1	1	61*	61	NA	1	0	3	0	0	0	0	0
Nairn, Joshua	7	7	0	17	52	7.43	0	0	7	1	2	0	0	31
Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	12	10	0	23	50	5.00	0	0	4	0	1	0	1.5	31
Daquino, Edward	8	7	0	20	47	6.71	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	4
Carlson, Adam	7	6	1	19	41	8.20	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	12
Ramsey, Mitchell	1	1	0	39	39	39.00	0	0	5	1	0	0	0	2
Smith, Jay	16	10	4	12*	38	6.33	0	0	2	0	10	0	0.5	53
Musitano, Jesse	1	1	0	36	36	36.00	0	0	5	2	1	0	0	7
Vlismas, Michael	5	5	0	15	33	6.60	0	0	4	0	1	0	0	15
Bhan, Ujjwal	2	2	0	19	32	16.00	0	0	5	0	1	0	0	15
Lockyer, Chris	11	8	4	10*	32	8.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	7
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	5	4	2	23*	31	15.50	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	7
Beaucasin, Michael	3	3	0	20	30	10.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
Vlismas, Ben	2	2	1	17*	27	27.00	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	4
Slocombe, Chris	5	4	2	17*	20	10.00	0	0	1	0	3	0	1	27
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	2	2	0	15	15	7.50	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4
Raza, Husnain	2	2	2	11*	12	NA	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	1
Callis, Elijah	2	1	0	8	8	8.00	0	0	2	0	3	0	0	12
Arcaro, Joshua	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	6
Ericson, Joshua	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	3
Tomar, Ayaan	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	11
Bolton, William	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	5
Cairns, Christopher	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	12
Scriven, Bradley	2	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Cleary, Jack	3	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	18
Nairn, Gregory	8	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.5	3
Abid, Arslan	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	10
Smith, Kieran	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	70	Steven Shearing - Donald McKeig*	12	Fremantle Mosman Park
2	88*	Steven Shearing* - Tate Saxon*	14	Curtin Victoria Park
3	48	Donald McKeig - Tate Saxon*	13	Wembley Districts
4	74	Michael Beaucasin* - Mahedi Hasan	4	North Beach Carine
5	79	Mahedi Hasan* - Kirk Spencer	8	Curtin Victoria Park
6	71	Lloyd Dungey - Mahedi Hasan*	2	Bedford Morley
7	45*	Mahedi Hasan* - Tony Magill*	2	Bedford Morley
8	78	Daniel Arcaro* - Tony Magill	3	Western Suburbs
9	35	Adam Carlson - Chris Slocombe*	11	Bedford Morley
10	36*	Tate Saxon* - Jay Smith*	1	Applecross

One Day Side Bowling

Player Name	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Smith, Jay	558	5	17	386	22.71	4/25	0	0	32.82	4.15
Slocombe, Chris	288	7	11	169	15.36	3/30	0	0	26.18	3.52
Nairn, Gregory	384	12	10	178	17.80	3/18	0	0	38.40	2.78
Carlson, Adam	318	1	8	216	27.00	2/14	0	0	39.75	4.08
Saxon, Tate	122	0	7	74	10.57	4/18	0	0	17.43	3.64
Hasan, Mahedi	268	4	7	173	24.71	3/27	0	0	38.29	3.87
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	198	1	6	144	24.00	3/21	0	0	33.00	4.36
Lockyer, Chris	312	4	5	202	40.40	2/35	0	0	62.40	3.88
Magill, Tony	144	0	4	109	27.25	2/40	0	0	36.00	4.54
Abid, Arslan	48	0	3	24	8.00	3/24	0	0	16.00	3.00
Bolton, William	48	1	3	26	8.67	3/26	0	0	16.00	3.25
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	48	0	3	27	9.00	3/18	0	0	16.00	3.38
Vlismas, Ben	89	0	3	60	20.00	2/28	0	0	29.67	4.04
Cleary, Simon	155	4	3	72	24.00	2/21	0	0	51.67	2.79
Nairn, Joshua	253	3	3	190	63.33	1/26	0	0	84.33	4.51
Vlismas, Michael	30	0	2	23	11.50	2/23	0	0	15.00	4.60
Raza, Husnain	49	0	2	44	22.00	1/14	0	0	24.50	5.39
Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	82	0	2	76	38.00	1/2	0	0	41.00	5.56
Arcaro, Joshua	48	0	1	37	37.00	1/37	0	0	48.00	4.63
Bhan, Ujjwal	36	0	1	40	40.00	1/40	0	0	36.00	6.67
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	108	0	1	94	94.00	1/17	0	0	108.00	5.22
Spencer, Kirk	5	0	0	3	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	3.60
Cleary, Jack	6	0	0	16	NA	0/16	0	0	NA	16.00
Ramsey, Mitchell	24	0	0	17	NA	0/17	0	0	NA	4.25
Ericson, Joshua	24	0	0	25	NA	0/25	0	0	NA	6.25
Beaucasin, Michael	48	0	0	31	NA	0/31	0	0	NA	3.88

200 Matches - Simon Cleary

Simon Cleary (player number 762)

Side	All	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	2005/06	2008/09	2005/06	2005/06	2005/06	2006/07
Matches	200.5	7	31	33.5	10	119
Runs	3093	133	508	736	124	1592
High Score	130	34	130	91	33	113*
Innings	193	8	29	31	10	115
Not Outs	21	1	2	3	0	15
Bat Average	17.98	19.00	18.81	26.29	12.40	15.92
4's	287	12	52	74	14	135
6's	126	6	25	31	1	63
Boundary %	61.56	63.16	70.47	65.49	50.00	57.66
Ducks	30	0	9	2	1	18
50's	9	0	0	4	0	5
100's	2	0	1	0	0	1
50 Partnerships	27	1	2	6	0	18
100 Partnerships	4	0	1	2	0	1
Catches	58	4	8	6	3	37
Stumpings	1	0	0	0	0	1
Run Outs	7	0	1	0.5	0	5.5
Balls Bowled	6113	281	901	1195	156	3580
Maidens	157	9	26	53	2	67
Wickets	195	15	16	41	6	117
Runs	3986	143	541	547	115	2640
Bowling Average	20.44	9.53	33.81	13.34	19.17	22.56
Best Bowling	4/13	4/13	2/14	3/32	4/50	4/26
5WI	0	0	0	0	0	0
7WI	0	0	0	0	0	0
10WM	0	0	0	0	0	0
S/R	31.35	18.73	56.31	29.15	26.00	30.60
E/R	3.91	3.05	3.60	2.75	4.42	4.42

Has the highest boundary percentage with a minimum of 2000 runs scored

Has a record partnership in the 3rd side - 154 for the 2nd wicket with Ken Dawson v Swan Valley at Shelley in 2012/13
Has a record partnership in the 4th side - 116* for the 7th wicket with Culver Chappelle v Western Suburbs at Shelley in 2009/10
Has a record partnership in the OD side - 54 for the 9th wicket with Chris Lockyer v Wembley Districts at Wembley Sports Park 2020/21
Is one of 3 players to score consecutive hundreds (2012/13 - R 11 in 6th grade, followed up in R16 in the OD grade)

150 Matches - Michael Vlismas

Michael Vlismas (player number 941)

Side	All	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	2010/11	2011/12	2010/11	2011/12	2010/11	2010/11
Matches	150.5	3	40.5	28.5	1	77.5
Runs	1853	34	386	202	1	1230
High Score	82*	18	48*	37	1	82*
Innings	125	3	30	22	1	69
Not Outs	39	0	5	11	0	23
Bat Average	21.55	11.33	15.44	18.36	1.00	26.74
4's	163	1	38	11	0	113
6's	21	0	1	5	0	15
Boundary %	41.99	11.76	40.93	36.63	0.00	44.07
Ducks	8	0	2	1	0	5
50's	5	0	0	0	0	5
100's	0	0	0	0	0	0
50 Partnerships	18	0	3	2	0	13
100 Partnerships	1	0	0	0	0	1
Catches	76	1	22	12	1	40
Stumpings	0	0	0	0	0	0
Run Outs	8.5	0	2.5	2	0	4
Balls Bowled	4991	153	1307	1513	48	1970
Maidens	115	5	35	48	2	25
Wickets	131	4	33	34	1	59
Runs	3286	76	798	838	22	1552
Bowling Average	25.08	19.00	24.18	24.65	22.00	26.31
Best Bowling	4/12	4/33	4/20	4/12	1/22	4/14
5WI	0	0	0	0	0	0
7WI	0	0	0	0	0	0
10WM	0	0	0	0	0	0
S/R	38.10	38.25	39.61	44.50	48.00	33.39
E/R	3.95	2.98	3.66	3.32	2.75	4.73

Holds 2 record partnerships in the OD side:

^{- 137*} for the 5th with with Blair Chapman v Swan Athletic Caversham at Lilac Hill 4 2020/21

⁻ 85* for the 7th wicket with Troy Douglass v Swan Valley at Baskerville , also in 2020/21

Club Roles

President Jay Smith
Vice President Cameron McNab
Secretary Tasman Harris
Treasurer Darren Leng

Committee Steve Cairns Tony Magill
Mitchell Crew Andrew Stace

Mitchell Crew Cam Daw

Patrons Hannah Beazley

Zaneta Mascarenhas

Vice Patrons Keith Chapman

Lloyd Dungey Steve Shearing

Club Coach David Taylor

Assistant Coach Tony Magill

Captains 1st XI Mitchell Crew / Manuel Hunwick

2nd XIDarren Leng3rd XIAndrew StaceOD XIJay Smith

Chairman of Selectors Andrew Stace

Cricket Manager Mitchell Crew

Nets Captain Stephen Cairns

Ground Marking Cameron McNab

Social Media Tasman Harris

Bar Manager Darren Leng

Equipment Manager Stephen Cairns

Kitchen Chris Lockyer

Curator Mark Petta

Curator's Assistant Cameron McNab

Junior Program Coordinator Jay Smith

Blasters Coaches Jay Smith

Cam McNab Darren Leng

Auditor Fab Fanayan

Statistician Tony Magill

Grade Awards

1st Grade	Batting average	Hugh Sando	34.70 ave
	Batting aggregate	Hugh Sando	347 runs
	Fielding	Omid Fanayan	103 votes
	Bowling average	Adam Palumbo	19.00 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Adam Palumbo	27 wickets
3rd Grade	Batting average	Umair Arshad	32.30 ave
	Batting aggregate	Umair Arshad	323 runs
	Fielding	Chris Pritchard	58 votes
	Bowling average	Ashton Taylor	12.47 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Ashton Taylor	17 wickets
6th Grade	Batting average	Ben Rae	42.27 ave
	Batting aggregate	Ben Rae	465 runs
	Fielding	Ben Rae	86 votes
	Bowling average	Joshua Arcaro	19.50 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Joshua Arcaro	18 wickets
OD4 Grade	Batting average	Donald McKeig	23.75 ave
	Batting aggregate	Mahedi Hasan	255 runs
	Fielding	Donald McKeig	90 votes
	Bowling average	Jay Smith	21.06 ave
	Bowling aggregate	Jay Smith	17 wickets
David Berry Clubperson	n Medal	Tasman Harris	
Hayward Medal		Zain Ul-Hassan	
Junior Achievement Aw	/ard	Ashton Taylor	
Centuries	Travis Keys Hugh Sando Joshua Arcaro Jesse Musitano Jesse Musitano	111 Balcatta 133 High Wycombe 111* Swanbourne 108 High Wycombe 125 High Wycombe	12/10/24 09/11/24 30/11/24 08/02/25 15/03/25

Season Batting

Player Name	M	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O
Rae, Ben	14	16	2	97*	496	35.43	3	0	44	1	8	0	1
Musitano, Jesse	13.5	16	1	125	464	30.93	0	2	49	10	7	0	0.5
Arshad, Muhammad Umair	12	13	1	76*	352	29.33	3	0	44	1	5	0	0
Sando, Hugh	9.5	10	0	133	347	34.70	2	1	44	6	7	0	0
Keys, Travis	12	13	0	111	294	22.62	1	1	26	3	11	0	1
Hasan, Mahedi	17	16	2	66	281	20.07	2	0	37	2	8	0	2
Hunwick, Manuel	11	13	0	93	257	19.77	1	0	20	5	8	0	0
Magill, Tony	18	16	3	52	249	19.15	1	0	25	6	9	0	1
Arcaro, Joshua	15	16	1	111*	243	16.20	0	1	29	2	5	0	1
Shearing, Steven	12	12	1	56	238	21.64	1	0	21	0	1	0	0
Stace, Andrew	14.5	13	1	62*	222	18.50	1	0	21	10	5	0	0
Fanayan, Omid	12	13	1	34	221	18.42	0	0	28	1	9	0	0.5
Saxon, Tate	3	3	2	80	219	219.00	3	0	22	3	1	0	0
Taylor, Ashton	11	11	0	69	209	19.00	1	0	13	0	4	0	0
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	14	15	0	44	208	13.87	0	0	12	0	2	0	0.5
Spencer, Kirk	16	15	1	29	207	14.79	0	0	26	0	4	0	0.5
Mckeig, Donald	10	10	1	61	203	22.56	1	0	24	3	6	2	0.5
Arcaro, David	7.5	8	0	54	202	25.25	2	0	17	1	1	0	0
Dungey, Lloyd	14	14	1	42*	201	15.46	0	0	18	0	1	0	0
Melling, David	11	12	0	65	196	16.33	1	0	22	2	5	0	1
Ul Hassan, Zain	4	4	1	81	192	64.00	2	0	17	5	0	0	0
Daw, Cameron	10.5	10	0	71	186	18.60	1	0	15	1	4	0	0
Taylor, David	6.5	7	0	49	163	23.29	0	0	20	3	0	0	0
Leng, Darren	12	9	0	62	141	15.67	1	0	11	0	4	0	0
Daquino, Edward	14	13	2	44*	141	12.82	0	0	8	0	0	0	0
Gill, Vishav	11	11	2	29	125	13.89	0	0	11	1	5	0	0
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	9	8	1	44*	117	16.71	0	0	10	2	1	0	0
Singh, Pushkar	10	11	2	36*	113	12.56	0	0	11	0	4	2	0.5
Bhan, Ujjwal	11	11	1	19	109	10.90	0	0	10	1	2	0	0
Horan, Tim	5.5	5	0	62	99	19.80	1	0	8	1	4	0	0
Dhillon, Khush	11	9	2	35	98	14.00	0	0	11	2	4	0	0
Pritchard, Chris	10	9	2	31	88	12.57	0	0	11	0	9	0	0
Harris, Tasman	9.5	11	3	52	88	11.00	1	0	8	2	2	0	0
Vlismas, Michael	9.5	9	2	33*	86	12.29	0	0	11	0	3	0	0
Singh, Gurvinder	12	13	0	28	86	6.62	0	0	6	0	11	0	0
Cleary, Simon	9	8	1	19*	85	12.14	0	0	8	1	5	0	0.5

Player Name	M	- 1	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O
Arcaro, Daniel	3	3	1	61*	74	37.00	1	0	3	2	0	0	0
Beaucasin, Michael	11	11	0	20	74	6.73	0	0	4	0	2	0	0
McNab, Cameron	15	14	4	14	71	7.10	0	0	3	0	5	1	3.5
Palumbo, Adam	11	11	4	22	60	8.57	0	0	2	2	3	0	0.5
Vlismas, Ben	14	12	5	17*	60	8.57	0	0	0	1	7	0	0
Smith, Jay	18	11	5	15*	53	8.83	0	0	3	0	11	0	0.5
Nairn, Joshua	7	7	0	17	52	7.43	0	0	7	1	2	0	0
Ahmed, Syed Raheel	6	3	1	27*	50	25.00	0	0	4	0	6	0	0
Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	12	10	0	23	50	5.00	0	0	4	0	1	0	1.5
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	8.5	6	1	15	47	9.40	0	0	2	0	1	0	0
Crew, Mitchell	9	9	2	23*	47	6.71	0	0	2	1	1	0	0
Tomar, Ayaan	5.5	6	0	20	46	7.67	0	0	4	0	6	0	0
Carlson, Adam	8.5	7	1	19	45	7.50	0	0	2	0	1	0	0
Francis, Tristan	3	3	0	27	43	14.33	0	0	4	2	1	0	0
Ramsey, Mitchell	1	1	0	39	39	39.00	0	0	5	1	2	0	0
Keys, Joshua	4	5	0	16	35	7.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0
Slocombe, Chris	12	10	4	17*	34	5.67	0	0	2	0	4	0	1
Lockyer, Chris	12	9	5	10*	32	8.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0
Curwood, Mitchell	10	8	3	10	32	6.40	0	0	4	0	3	0	0
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	6	4	2	23*	31	15.50	0	0	2	0	3	0	0
Ericson, Joshua	4	3	0	11	25	8.33	0	0	1	0	1	0	0
Saini, Balwinder	4.5	4	1	14	24	8.00	0	0	3	0	3	0	0
Chauhan, Gauravsingh	4	2	0	20	20	10.00	0	0	2	1	2	0	1
Khalsa, Gurseerat	1	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0.5
Raza, Husnain	4	5	3	11*	14	7.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Rana, Harsh	1	1	1	13*	13	NA	0	0	1	1	1	0	0
Kumar, Pardeep	6.5	6	4	6	12	6.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Abid, Arslan	3	3	1	11*	11	5.50	0	0	1	0	1	0	0
Callis, Elijah	4	1	0	8	8	8.00	0	0	2	0	6	0	0
Dilshad, Umar	2	2	1	6*	7	7.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Singh, Avneet	5	6	1	4	7	1.40	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bolton, William	2	1	1	5*	5	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Singh, Gagu	1	2	0	1	1	0.50	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Cairns, Christopher	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Scriven, Bradley	2	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Cleary, Jack	3	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Nairn, Gregory	8	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.5
Smith, Kieran	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Season Bowling

Player Name	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Palumbo, Adam	763	14	27	513	19.00	4/10	0	0	28.26	4.03
Taylor, Ashton	603	11	24	355	14.79	5/30	3	0	25.13	3.53
Arcaro, Joshua	794	15	24	444	18.50	5/30	1	0	33.08	3.36
Stace, Andrew	936	22	21	467	22.24	4/21	0	0	44.57	2.99
Slocombe, Chris	570	17	18	320	17.78	3/30	0	0	31.67	3.37
Smith, Jay	654	10	18	426	23.67	4/25	0	0	36.33	3.91
Melling, David	702	13	18	541	30.06	4/66	0	0	39.00	4.62
Gill, Vishav	595	19	15	337	22.47	3/12	0	0	39.67	3.40
Dhillon, Khush	516	17	14	279	19.93	3/22	0	0	36.86	3.24
Leng, Darren	510	16	14	304	21.71	5/22	1	0	36.43	3.58
Magill, Tony	558	9	13	350	26.92	2/20	0	0	42.92	3.76
Harris, Tasman	483	15	12	274	22.83	3/32	0	0	40.25	3.40
Crew, Mitchell	412	7	12	321	26.75	3/56	0	0	34.33	4.67
Curwood, Mitchell	420	8	11	278	25.27	5/25	1	0	38.18	3.97
Vlismas, Ben	427	7	11	291	26.45	4/14	0	0	38.82	4.09
Nairn, Gregory	384	12	10	178	17.80	3/18	0	0	38.40	2.78
Abid, Arslan	216	12	9	62	6.89	4/18	0	0	24.00	1.72
Rae, Ben	237	1	8	149	18.63	2/11	0	0	29.63	3.77
Carlson, Adam	360	1	8	260	32.50	2/14	0	0	45.00	4.33
Saxon, Tate	122	0	7	74	10.57	4/18	0	0	17.43	3.64
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	258	5	7	169	24.14	3/18	0	0	36.86	3.93
Hasan, Mahedi	274	4	7	184	26.29	3/27	0	0	39.14	4.03
Arcaro, David	120	2	6	86	14.33	2/18	0	0	20.00	4.30
Kumar, Pardeep	180	5	6	135	22.50	2/27	0	0	30.00	4.50
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	164	2	6	182	30.33	3/21	0	0	27.33	6.66
Lockyer, Chris	312	4	5	202	40.40	2/35	0	0	62.40	3.88
Fanayan, Omid	378	3	5	245	49.00	2/31	0	0	75.60	3.89

Player Name	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Rana, Harsh	156	2	4	68	17.00	3/22	0	0	39.00	2.62
Musitano, Jesse	148	1	4	97	24.25	2/17	0	0	37.00	3.93
Taylor, David	154	1	4	103	25.75	2/31	0	0	38.50	4.01
Singh, Avneet	218	5	4	151	37.75	4/65	0	0	54.50	4.16
Bolton, William	60	1	3	39	13.00	3/26	0	0	20.00	3.90
Cleary, Simon	155	4	3	72	24.00	2/21	0	0	51.67	2.79
Saini, Balwinder	144	3	3	89	29.67	1/21	0	0	48.00	3.71
McNab, Cameron	114	0	3	117	39.00	2/60	0	0	38.00	6.16
Nairn, Joshua	253	3	3	190	63.33	1/26	0	0	84.33	4.51
Vlismas, Michael	30	0	2	23	11.50	2/23	0	0	15.00	4.60
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	120	4	2	26	13.00	2/24	0	0	60.00	1.30
Khalsa, Gurseerat	30	0	2	34	17.00	2/34	0	0	15.00	6.80
Raza, Husnain	55	0	2	53	26.50	1/14	0	0	27.50	5.78
Ul Hassan, Zain	126	3	2	67	33.50	2/14	0	0	63.00	3.19
Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	82	0	2	76	38.00	1/2	0	0	41.00	5.56
Daw, Cameron	102	0	2	77	38.50	2/14	0	0	51.00	4.53
Ericson, Joshua	144	3	2	135	67.50	1/32	0	0	72.00	5.63
Chauhan, Gauravsingh	6	0	1	1	1.00	1/1	0	0	6.00	1.00
Keys, Travis	2	0	1	1	1.00	1/1	0	0	2.00	3.00
Daquino, Edward	18	0	1	10	10.00	1/10	0	0	18.00	3.33
Hunwick, Manuel	12	0	1	20	20.00	1/20	0	0	12.00	10.00
Singh, Gagu	42	0	1	37	37.00	1/37	0	0	42.00	5.29
Beaucasin, Michael	102	3	1	48	48.00	1/4	0	0	102.00	2.82
Bhan, Ujjwal	84	1	1	67	67.00	1/40	0	0	84.00	4.79
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	132	0	1	115	115.00	1/17	0	0	132.00	5.23
Spencer, Kirk	5	0	0	3	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	3.60
Singh, Gurvinder	36	3	0	6	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	1.00
Singh, Pushkar	12	0	0	7	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	3.50
Arcaro, Daniel	6	0	0	10	NA	0/10	0	0	NA	10.00
Ahmed, Syed Raheel	18	0	0	14	NA	0/6	0	0	NA	4.67
Cleary, Jack	6	0	0	16	NA	0/16	0	0	NA	16.00
Ramsey, Mitchell	24	0	0	17	NA	0/17	0	0	NA	4.25
Callis, Elijah	54	2	0	21	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	2.33
Sando, Hugh	24	0	0	26	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	6.50
Dilshad, Umar	60	0	0	38	NA	0/17	0	0	NA	3.80

Ralph Dungey Points

Player	Points	Player	Points
Rae, Ben	621 *	McNab, Cameron	146
Taylor, Ashton	485 *	Cleary, Simon	142
Arcaro, Joshua	471 *	Carlson, Adam	135
Musitano, Jesse	440	Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	125
Hasan, Mahedi	413 *	Singh, Gurvinder	123
Magill, Tony	403	Abid, Arslan	115
Melling, David	393	Nairn, Joshua	110
Sando, Hugh	387 *	Horan, Tim	107
Keys, Travis	386	Bhan, Ujjwal	105
Fanayan, Omid	374 *	Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	101
Stace, Andrew	371	Vlismas, Michael	100
Palumbo, Adam	371 *	Beaucasin, Michael	96
Arshad, Muhammad Umair	364 *	Nairn, Gregory	93
Gill, Vishav	331	Lockyer, Chris	89
Saxon, Tate	320	Kumar, Pardeep	82
Hunwick, Manuel	306	Chauhan, Gauravsingh	75
Arcaro, David	298	Arcaro, Daniel	74
Leng, Darren	298	Saini, Balwinder	74
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	290	Tomar, Ayaan	70
Mckeig, Donald	280 *	Ahmed, Syed Raheel	68
Singh, Khush	278	Rana, Harsh	59
Smith, Jay	260 *	Keys, Joshua	53
Shearing, Steven	251	Ramsey, Mitchell	51
Spencer, Kirk	247	Ericson, Joshua	50
Harris, Tasman	245	Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	50
Slocombe, Chris	234	Singh, Avneet	50
Daw, Cameron	228	Khalsa, Gurseerat	48
Ul-Hassan, Zain	223	Francis, Tristan	46
Dungey, Lloyd	220	Bolton, William	40
Taylor, David	220	Callis, Elijah	36
Crew, Mitchell	213	Raza, Husnain	35
Vlismas, Ben	200	Cleary, Jack	18
Singh, Pushkar	178	Cairns, Christopher	12
Curwood, Mitchell	165	Singh, Gagu	12
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	165	Dilshad, Umar	10
Pritchard, Chris	163 *		
Daquino, Edward	158		

^{*} denotes a player ineligable for this award due to winning another major award

Consistency Award Points

Player	Points	Player	Points
Rae, Ben	656	Singh, Pushkar	178
Taylor, Ashton	605	Carlson, Adam	175
Arcaro, Joshua	566	Kalangutkar, Mahendra	175
Palumbo, Adam	506	Daquino, Edward	163
Melling, David	483	Pritchard, Chris	163
Magill, Tony	463	McNab, Cameron	161
Stace, Andrew	456	Abid, Arslan	160
Musitano, Jesse	450	Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	160
Hasan, Mahedi	448	Cleary, Simon	157
Gill, Vishav	406	Nairn, Gregory	138
Fanayan, Omid	399	Nairn, Joshua	125
Keys, Travis	391	Singh, Gurvinder	123
Sando, Hugh	387	Lockyer, Chris	114
Leng, Darren	368	Kumar, Pardeep	112
Arshad, Muhammad Umair	364	Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	111
Saxon, Tate	355	Bhan, Ujjwal	110
Singh, Khush	348	Horan, Tim	107
Smith, Jay	345	Beaucasin, Michael	101
Arcaro, David	328	Vlismas, Michael	100
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	320	Saini, Balwinder	89
Slocombe, Chris	319	Chauhan, Gauravsingh	80
Hunwick, Manuel	316	Rana, Harsh	79
Harris, Tasman	305	Arcaro, Daniel	74
Mckeig, Donald	280	Singh, Avneet	70
Crew, Mitchell	273	Tomar, Ayaan	70
Vlismas, Ben	255	Ahmed, Syed Raheel	68
Shearing, Steven	251	Ericson, Joshua	60
Spencer, Kirk	247	Khalsa, Gurseerat	58
Taylor, David	240	Bolton, William	55
Daw, Cameron	238	Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	55
Ul-Hassan, Zain	233	Keys, Joshua	53
Curwood, Mitchell	220	Ramsey, Mitchell	51
Dungey, Lloyd	220	Francis, Tristan	46
		Raza, Husnain	45
		Callis, Elijah	36
		Cleary, Jack	18
		Singh, Gagu	17
		Cairns, Christopher	12
		Dilshad, Umar	10

Career Batting

Player Name	М	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50s ²	100s	0s	4s	6s	Cat	St	RO	Dis	Bdy%
Dungey, Donald L	643	738	106	117	12587	19.92	44	4	81	1056	78	232	0	37	232	37.3
Shearing, Steven J	314.5	340	58	114*	7784	27.60	42	3	28	660	15	99	0	3.5	99	35.1
Magill, Anthony J	388.5	398	83	112	6921	21.97	27	4	39	705	193	169	0	36.5	169	57.5
Fanayan, Omid	265.5	288	29	112	6257	24.16	29	3	30	701	30	153	1	11.5	154	47.7
Arcaro, Daniel	132.5	149	28	205*	5249	43.38	28	11	14	588	139	76	0	7	76	60.7
Pritchard, Chris	247	267	22	117	5057	20.64	26	4	27	564	7	231	7	13.5	238	45.4
Daquino, Edward	247	260	32	150	4546	19.94	18	2	21	554	23	35	0	2	35	51.8
Lockyer, Christopher	302.5	272	62	73	3346	15.93	8	0	30	273	29	110	0	12	110	37.8
McKeig, Donald R	201	198	17	91*	3249	17.95	11	0	20	334	26	106	16	11	122	45.9
Cleary, Simon V	202.5	195	21	130	3109	17.87	9	2	30	289	126	60	1	7	61	61.5
Spencer, Kirk	147	163	28	80	2698	19.99	11	0	15	296	54	64	0	4.5	64	55.9
Daw, Cameron	121.5	113	7	137*	2185	20.61	9	1	9	252	14	93	4	4.5	97	50.0
McNab, Cameron R	224.5	219	52	95*	2135	12.78	3	0	29	173	3	164	10	24	174	33.3
Smith, Kieran E	68	74	11	106	2031	32.24	12	2	8	236	31	23	1	5	24	55.6
Vlismas, Michael	157	131	41	82*	1930	21.44	5	0	9	173	21	78	0	8.5	78	42.4
Nairn, Gregory J	280	231	74	95	1825	11.62	1	0	29	174	9	92	1	17	93	41.1
Hunwick, Manuel	58	64	7	140	1806	31.68	8	2	8	189	20	28	0	1	28	48.5
Ericson, Joshua	150.5	127	29	103	1715	17.50	4	1	16	135	3	69	0	8.5	69	32.5
Horan, Tim	73	74	4	132*	1622	23.17	7	1	7	179	19	25	0	2.5	25	51.2
Leng, Darren	135	118	26	101*	1431	15.55	2	1	7	149	3	42	0	6.5	42	42.9
Keys, Travis	44	47	0	119	1248	26.55	3	2	1	133	15	49	7	5.5	56	49.8
Singh, Gurvinder	61.5	68	3	61	1093	16.82	5	0	9	90	2	27	0	2.5	27	34.0
Beaucasin, Michael	73.5	77	5	63	962	13.36	1	0	9	90	0	19	0	4.5	19	37.4
Bhan, Ujjwal	144	122	26	57	866	9.02	1	0	21	69	5	59	0	4.5	59	35.3
Musitano, Jesse	33	39	2	125	775	20.95	0	2	5	84	15	13	0	0.5	13	55.0
Saini, Balwinder	45.5	49	6	69	772	17.95	3	0	5	86	5	31	0	2.5	31	48.4
Nairn, Joshua G	84	85	20	43*	737	11.34	0	0	14	78	7	30	0	5	30	48.0
Palumbo, Adam	99	85	22	46*	702	11.14	0	0	16	41	19	24	0	6.5	24	39.6
Francis, Tristan	17	22	0	150	627	28.50	3	1	1	95	8	9	0	0	9	68.3
Smith, Jay P	172	123	41	31	614	7.49	0	0	28	45	3	64	0	2.5	64	32.2
Ul-Hassan, Zain	17	16	2	100	546	39.00	3	1	0	46	10	1	0	2	1	44.7

Player Name	М	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50s	100s	0s	4s	6s	Cat	St	RO	Dis	Bdy%
Rae, Ben	14	16	2	97*	496	35.43	3	0	1	44	1	8	0	1	8	36.7
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	26	27	3	58*	490	20.42	2	0	3	25	0	5	0	3.5	5	20.4
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	33.5	30	4	51*	490	18.85	1	0	6	43	11	6	0	2	6	48.6
Crew, Mitchell J	62	47	19	57*	442	15.79	1	0	4	29	7	17	0	5.5	17	35.7
Taylor, David	11.5	12	1	69	396	36.00	3	0	0	39	11	1	0	0	1	56.1
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	34	36	6	59	367	12.23	1	0	8	37	10	12	0	3.5	12	56.7
Arshad, Muhammad Umair	12	13	1	76*	352	29.33	3	0	2	44	1	5	0	0	5	51.7
Singh, Khushpal	37	36	6	40*	350	11.67	0	0	5	39	4	10	0	1.5	10	51.4
Sando, Hugh	9.5	10	0	133	347	34.70	2	1	1	44	6	7	0	0	7	61.1
Gill, Vishav	41.5	38	8	29*	328	10.93	0	0	2	35	1	14	0	3	14	44.5
Hasan, Mahedi	22	21	2	66	315	16.58	2	0	1	39	3	11	0	2.5	11	55.2
Harris, Tasman	44.5	38	12	52	271	10.42	1	0	8	17	12	13	0	1	13	51.7
Arcaro, Joshua	15	16	1	111*	243	16.20	0	1	3	29	2	5	0	1	5	52.7
Saxon, Tate	5	5	2	80	237	79.00	3	0	0	22	3	2	0	0	2	44.7
Taylor, Ashton	14	14	0	69	233	16.64	1	0	0	14	0	4	0	0	4	24.0
Arcaro, David	7.5	8	0	54	202	25.25	2	0	1	17	1	1	0	0	1	36.6
Melling, David	11	12	0	65	196	16.33	1	0	1	22	2	5	0	1	5	51.0
Chauhan, Gauravsingh	12	11	0	27	151	13.73	0	0	2	15	4	9	0	1.5	9	55.6
Rana, Harsh	6	7	2	76	148	29.60	1	0	1	9	13	4	0	0	4	77.0
Curwood, Mitchell	19	17	6	41*	142	12.91	0	0	1	13	0	6	0	0	6	36.6
Callis, Elijah	28	23	6	20*	137	8.06	0	0	3	16	1	16	0	0.5	16	51.1
Singh, Pushkar	10	11	2	36*	113	12.56	0	0	1	11	0	4	2	0.5	6	38.9
Singh, Avneet	11.5	13	1	23	82	6.83	0	0	3	9	1	1	0	0	1	51.2
Kumar, Pardeep	19.5	19	6	16	76	5.85	0	0	6	4	1	3	0	1	3	28.9
Vlismas, Ben	15	13	6	17*	74	10.57	0	0	4	1	1	7	0	0	7	13.5
Slocombe, Chris	26	15	5	17*	56	5.60	0	0	5	4	0	10	0	1.5	10	28.6
Dilshad, Umar	6	8	1	25	52	7.43	0	0	2	3	0	0	0	0	0	23.1
Ahmed, Syed Raheel	6	3	1	27*	50	25.00	0	0	0	4	0	6	0	0	6	32.0
Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	12	10	0	23	50	5.00	0	0	3	4	0	1	0	1.5	1	32.0
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	8.5	6	1	15	47	9.40	0	0	1	2	0	1	0	0	1	17.0
Tomar, Ayaan	5.5	6	0	20	46	7.67	0	0	2	4	0	6	0	0	6	34.8
Carlson, Adam	8.5	7	1	19	45	7.50	0	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	1	17.8
Ramsey, Mitchell	1	1	0	39	39	39.00	0	0	0	5	1	2	0	0	2	66.7
Keys, Joshua	4	5	0	16	35	7.00	0	0	1	2	0	1	0	0	1	22.9
Khalsa, Gurseerat	1	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0.5	0	63.2
Raza, Husnain	4	5	3	11*	14	7.00	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	57.1
Abid, Arslan	3	3	1	11*	11	5.50	0	0	2	1	0	1	0	0	1	36.4
Bolton, William	2	1	1	5*	5	NA	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0.0
Singh, Gagu	1	2	0	1	1	0.50	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	1	0.0
Cleary, Jack	9	3	0	1	1	0.33	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.0
Scriven, Bradley	2	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	NA
Cairns, Christopher	3.5	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	NA

Career Bowling

Player Name	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	10WM	S/R	E/R
Nairn, Gregory J	24401	1218	661	9857	14.91	8/13	28	4	4	36.9	2.42
Magill, Anthony J	22733	980	587	10420	17.75	8/35	14	2	1	38.7	2.75
Lockyer, Christopher	15174	624	441	7024	15.93	7/44	11	1	0	34.4	2.78
Spencer, Kirk	8152	343	243	3741	15.40	6/19	9	0	0	33.5	2.75
Ericson, Joshua	7767	220	218	4548	20.86	7/34	2	1	0	35.6	3.51
Cleary, Simon V	6162	158	195	4007	20.55	4/13	0	0	0	31.6	3.90
Palumbo, Adam	5775	149	178	3504	19.69	6/25	2	0	0	32.4	3.64
Leng, Darren	6103	204	172	3302	19.20	7/34	7	3	0	35.5	3.25
Smith, Jay P	6542	153	171	4181	24.45	5/41	1	0	0	38.3	3.83
Bhan, Ujjwal	5751	175	162	3265	20.15	5/11	4	0	0	35.5	3.41
Vlismas, Michael	5021	115	133	3309	24.88	4/12	0	0	0	37.8	3.95
Shearing, Steven J	4289	132	126	2232	17.71	6/45	1	0	0	34.0	3.12
Daquino, Edward	4159	109	115	2418	21.03	4/13	0	0	0	36.2	3.49
Nairn, Joshua G	4013	125	90	2380	26.44	4/7	0	0	0	44.6	3.56
McKeig, Donald R	3170	86	89	1903	21.38	6/51	4	0	0	35.6	3.60
Arcaro, Daniel	2951	81	83	1764	21.25	5/21	2	0	0	35.6	3.59
Crew, Mitchell J	3004	88	79	1923	24.34	5/47	1	0	0	38.0	3.84
Saini, Balwinder	2101	77	72	1033	14.35	5/42	1	0	0	29.2	2.95
McNab, Cameron R	2272	33	68	1651	24.28	6/14	3	0	0	33.4	4.36
Harris, Tasman	2504	70	66	1532	23.21	5/76	1	0	0	37.9	3.67
Singh, Khushpal	2225	65	64	1219	19.05	6/45	2	0	0	34.8	3.29
Gill, Vishav	1996	58	55	1100	20.00	4/18	0	0	0	36.3	3.31
Smith, Kieran E	2086	49	53	1327	25.04	3/20	0	0	0	39.4	3.82
Daw, Cameron	1952	46	45	1212	26.93	4/35	0	0	0	43.4	3.73
Dungey, Donald L	1278	11	42	704	16.76	4/11	0	0	0	30.4	3.31
Taylor, Ashton	731	12	27	455	16.85	5/30	3	0	0	27.1	3.73
Arcaro, Joshua	794	15	24	444	18.50	5/30	1	0	0	33.1	3.36
Slocombe, Chris	1044	23	24	623	25.96	3/30	0	0	0	43.5	3.58
Fanayan, Omid	868	15	23	587	25.52	3/6	0	0	0	37.7	4.06
Kane-Slocombe, Bohen	516	7	22	452	20.55	3/20	0	0	0	23.5	5.26
Singh, Gurvinder	804	22	22	457	20.77	4/36	0	0	0	36.5	3.41
Ul-Hassan, Zain	773	12	22	481	21.86	4/16	0	0	0	35.1	3.73

Player Name	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	10WM	S/R	E/R
Melling, David	702	13	18	541	30.06	4/66	0	0	0	39.0	4.62
Curwood, Mitchell	865	12	18	558	31.00	5/25	1	0	0	48.1	3.87
Singh, Avneet	550	21	17	300	17.65	4/25	0	0	0	32.4	3.27
Kumar, Pardeep	725	23	17	395	23.24	4/23	0	0	0	42.6	3.27
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	829	21	17	575	33.82	3/67	0	0	0	48.8	4.16
Pritchard, Chris	606	11	14	446	31.86	4/30	0	0	0	43.3	4.42
Callis, Elijah	530	4	13	357	27.46	3/27	0	0	0	40.8	4.04
Vlismas, Ben	427	7	11	291	26.45	4/14	0	0	0	38.8	4.09
Abid, Arslan	216	12	9	62	6.89	4/18	0	0	0	24.0	1.72
Saxon, Tate	188	0	9	114	12.67	4/18	0	0	0	20.9	3.64
Rana, Harsh	402	6	9	225	25.00	3/22	0	0	0	44.7	3.36
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	505	17	9	238	26.44	2/24	0	0	0	56.1	2.83
Rae, Ben	237	1	8	149	18.63	2/11	0	0	0	29.6	3.77
Taylor, David	264	2	8	197	24.63	2/31	0	0	0	33.0	4.48
Carlson, Adam	360	1	8	260	32.50	2/14	0	0	0	45.0	4.33
Thiruppathi, Rithvik Vibhushan	258	5	7	169	24.14	3/18	0	0	0	36.9	3.93
Hasan, Mahedi	286	4	7	200	28.57	3/27	0	0	0	40.9	4.20
Musitano, Jesse	280	1	7	240	34.29	2/17	0	0	0	40.0	5.14
Arcaro, David	120	2	6	86	14.33	2/18	0	0	0	20.0	4.30
Dilshad, Umar	276	4	6	140	23.33	3/21	0	0	0	46.0	3.04
Bolton, William	60	1	3	39	13.00	3/26	0	0	0	20.0	3.90
Khalsa, Gurseerat	30	0	2	34	17.00	2/34	0	0	0	15.0	6.80
Raza, Husnain	55	0	2	53	26.50	1/14	0	0	0	27.5	5.78
Hunwick, Manuel	102	1	2	72	36.00	1/15	0	0	0	51.0	4.24
Tariq, Mohammad Hafeez	82	0	2	76	38.00	1/2	0	0	0	41.0	5.56
Beaucasin, Michael	198	4	2	135	67.50	1/4	0	0	0	99.0	4.09
Keys, Travis	2	0	1	1	1.00	1/1	0	0	0	2.0	3.00
Horan, Tim	42	0	1	33	33.00	1/15	0	0	0	42.0	4.71
Singh, Gagu	42	0	1	37	37.00	1/37	0	0	0	42.0	5.29
Chauhan, Gauravsingh	72	0	1	71	71.00	1/1	0	0	0	72.0	5.92
Francis, Tristan	12	0	0	5	NA	0/5	0	0	0	NA	2.50
Singh, Pushkar	12	0	0	7	NA	0/0	0	0	0	NA	3.50
Ahmed, Syed Raheel	18	0	0	14	NA	0/6	0	0	0	NA	4.67
Ramsey, Mitchell	24	0	0	17	NA	0/17	0	0	0	NA	4.25
Cleary, Jack	12	0	0	25	NA	0/9	0	0	0	NA	12.50
Sando, Hugh	24	0	0	26	NA	0/0	0	0	0	NA	6.50

Milestones Achieved

Э
<
•

Milestones Achievable 2025/26

Milestone	Player	Current	Milestone	Player	Current
650 Matches	Lloyd Dungey	643.0	8000 Runs	Steven Shearing	7784
400 Matches	Tony Magill	388.5	7000 Runs	Tony Magill	6921
250 Matches	Ed Daquino	247.0	6500 Runs	Omid Fanayan	6257
250 Matches	Chris Pritchard	247.0	5500 Runs	Daniel Arcaro	5249
150 Matches	Kirk Spencer	147.0	2000 Runs	Michael Vlismas	1930
150 Matches	Darren Leng	135.0	2000 Runs	Joshua Ericson	1715
150 Matches	Ujjwal Bhan	144.0	1500 Runs	Darren Leng	1431
100 Matches	Adam Palumbo	99.0	1000 Runs	Michael Beaucasin	962
50 Matches	Balwinder Saini	45.5	1000 Runs	Ujjwal Bhan	866
50 Matches	Tasman Harris	44.5	1000 Runs	Jesse Musitano	775
50 Matches	Vishav Gill	41.5	1000 Runs	Balwinder Saini	772
50 Matches	Khushpal Singh	37.0	500 Runs	Ben Rae	496
			500 Runs	Mahendra Kalangutkar	490
			500 Runs	Bohen Kane-Slocombe	490
600 Wickets	Tony Magill	587	500 Runs	Mitchell Crew	442
250 Wickets	Kirk Spencer	243	500 Runs	Jithu Krishnamoorthy	367
200 Wickets	Simon Cleary	195	500 Runs	Umair Arshad	352
200 Wickets	Adam Palumbo	178	500 Runs	Kushpal Singh	350
200 Wickets	Darren Leng	172	500 Runs	Mahedi Hasan	315
200 Wickets	Jay Smith	171	500 Runs	Tasman Harris	271
150 Wickets	Michael Vlismas	133	500 Runs	Joshua Arcaro	243
100 Wickets	Joshua Nairn	90	500 Runs	Tate Saxon	237
100 Wickets	Donald McKeig	89	500 Runs	David Arcaro	202
100 Wickets	Mitchell Crew	79			
50 Wickets	Cameron Daw	45			
50 Wickets	Joshua Arcaro	24	250 Catches	Chris Pritchard	231
50 Wickets	Chris Slocombe	24	100 Catches	Steven Shearing	99
			100 Catches	Cameron Daw	93
			100 Catches	Gregory Nairn	92
			50 Catches	Darren Leng	42

T20 Side Batting

Player Name	M	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O
Keys, Travis	3	3	0	39	72	24.00	0	0	3	5	0	1	0
Khalsa, Gurseerat	3	3	0	25	51	17.00	0	0	8	0	0	0	0
Sando, Hugh	3	3	0	23	50	16.67	0	0	5	1	1	0	0
Melling, David	3	3	1	24*	47	23.50	0	0	0	4	1	0	0
Hunwick, Manuel	2	2	0	18	31	15.50	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Singh, Pushkar	3	3	0	11	24	8.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Singh, Gagu	3	3	1	8	16	8.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0.5
Sandhu, Harmanpreet	2	2	0	13	15	7.50	0	0	0	1	0	0	0
Singh, Avneet	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Dilshad, Umar	2	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Palumbo, Adam	3	2	1	3*	4	4.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0.5
Daw, Cameron	3	2	0	1	1	0.50	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Harris, Tasman	1	1	1	1*	1	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Kumar, Pardeep	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	73	Travis Keys - Gurseerat Khalsa*	1	Applecross
2	44	Travis Keys - Hugh Sando*	3	Swanbourne
3	22	Hugh Sando - Manuel Hunwick*	Ro16	Swan Valley
4	18	Manuel Hunwick - David Melling*	Ro16	Swan Valley
5	29*	Gagu Singh* - David Melling*	1	Applecross
6	19	Pushkar Singh - David Melling*	3	Swanbourne
6	19	Gagu Singh* - Pushkar Singh	Ro16	Swan Valley
7	2	David Melling - Cameron Daw*	3	Swanbourne
7	2	Gagu Singh - Harmanpreet Sandhu*	Ro16	Swan Valley
8	15	Harmanpreet Sandhu* - Cameron Daw	Ro16	Swan Valley
9	7	Harmanpreet Sandhu - Adam Palumbo	Ro16	Swan Valley
10	12	Adam Palumbo* - Umar Dilshad	3	Swanbourne

Bowling

Player Name	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Melling, David	72	0	6	81	13.50	3/28	0	0	12.00	6.75
Singh, Avneet	24	0	3	22	7.33	3/22	0	0	8.00	5.50
Daw, Cameron	18	0	2	27	13.50	1/12	0	0	9.00	9.00
Palumbo, Adam	72	1	2	57	28.50	1/15	0	0	36.00	4.75
Khalsa, Gurseerat	66	0	2	71	35.50	1/28	0	0	33.00	6.45
Kumar, Pardeep	6	0	0	8	NA	0/8	0	0	NA	8.00
Singh, Gagu	12	0	0	15	NA	0/15	0	0	NA	7.50
Sandhu, Harmanpreet	14	0	0	21	NA	0/21	0	0	NA	9.00
Harris, Tasman	24	0	0	25	NA	0/25	0	0	NA	6.25
Dilshad, Umar	42	0	0	61	NA	0/25	0	0	NA	8.71

T20 Career Batting

Player	M	Inn	N/O	HS	Runs	Ave	50+	Dks	4s	6s	Cat	St	R/O
Hunwick, Manuel	10	9	0	39	159	17.67	0	0	10	3	4	0	0
Keys, Travis	4	4	0	64	136	34.00	1	0	11	7	0	2	0
Khalsa, Gurseerat	3	3	0	25	51	17.00	0	0	8	0	0	0	0
Sando, Hugh	3	3	0	23	50	16.67	0	0	5	1	1	0	0
Melling, David	3	3	1	24*	47	23.50	0	0	0	4	1	0	0
Daw, Cameron	7	6	0	18	44	7.33	0	1	1	1	2	0	0
Palumbo, Adam	6	5	2	19	25	8.33	0	0	1	0	4	0	2
Singh, Pushkar	3	3	0	11	24	8.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Singh, Gagu	3	3	1	8	16	8.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0.5
Sandhu, Harmanpreet	2	2	0	13	15	7.50	0	0	0	1	0	0	0
Singh, Avneet	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Dilshad, Umar	2	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Harris, Tasman	1	1	1	1*	1	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Kumar, Pardeep	1	0	0	0	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Bowling

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	BB	S/R	E/R
Melling, David	72	0	6	81	13.50	3/28	12.00	6.75
Palumbo, Adam	144	1	6	116	19.33	2/25	24.00	4.83
Singh, Avneet	24	0	3	22	7.33	3/22	8.00	5.50
Daw, Cameron	48	0	2	62	31.00	0/12	24.00	7.75
Khalsa, Gurseerat	66	0	2	71	35.50	1/28	33.00	6.45
Kumar, Pardeep	6	0	0	8	NA	0/8	NA	8.00
Hunwick, Manuel	12	0	0	14	NA	0/14	NA	7.00
Singh, Gagu	12	0	0	15	NA	0/15	NA	7.50
Sandhu, Harmanpreet	14	0	0	21	NA	0/21	NA	9.00
Harris, Tasman	24	0	0	25	NA	0/25	NA	6.25
Dilshad, Umar	42	0	0	61	NA	0/25	NA	8.71

Lesley Magill

Lesley passed suddenly in September 2024, she was a huge part of the Bentley Cricket Club over the past four decades. She initially came to the club as a supporter, with the Magill family boasting several players: sons Tony and Kevin as well as nephew Simon. The Magill boys played juniors for the club, then moved into senior cricket during the 1988/89 season. Not satisfied with merely cheering from the sidelines, Lesley became very involved with the club as a hardworking volunteer from that point onwards.

In 1992 Lesley joined the executive in the role of secretary, a position she held until 1997. Remaining on the committee until 2001, such was the regard in which she was held, Les was awarded a Life Membership in that same year. Hers was the first Life Membership to a non-player and the first to a woman the club had awarded in our then 48-year history.

Lesley took a break from official committee business after the 2000/01 season but continued to put in countless hours around the club. Les was the tireless champion of the now quintessential BCC quiz night: writing to sponsors for prizes, organising a quizmaster, compiling questions or marking answers and tallying points - it's fair to say this major annual fundraising event for the club would not exist if not for the efforts of Lesley Magill. In addition, Les would volunteer for sausage sizzles or help organise the food and presents for the BCC Christmas party. For our most recent players, her contribution was in the club kitchen: preparing our post-training dinners, or the beautifully presented Saturday afternoon teas. Les was happy to cater to any and all events held at Wyong, and the players were always extremely grateful for the delicious food she had lovingly prepared.

Lesley rejoined the committee in 2013 and was a regular attendee at meetings for a further ten seasons. Altogether, Lesley was a committee member for an astonishing 19 years, with 7 of those on the executive. During the celebrations of the club's 70th anniversary in 2023, Lesley was named in the 'BCC Clubpersons XI', which recognised the eleven most significant volunteers in the history of the club. RIP Les.



WE WOULD LIKE TO THANK OUR SPONSORS:

eurocare)



Pirconditioning Services















CURTIN RADIO

A Lifetime of Music



Annalice
Framing Creations

